
City of Jacksonville Beach 
JACKSONVILI.E 
BEACH 

Monday, February 19, 2018 

MEMORANDUM TO: 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

Council Members: 

Agenda 

City Council 

7:00 PM 

11 North Third Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

Council Chambers 

The following Agenda of Business has been prepared for consideration and action at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council. 

OPENING CEREMONIES: INVOCATION, FOLLOWED BY SALUTE TO THE FLAG 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. 18-022 City Council Briefing Held February 5, 2018 

b. 18-023 Regular City Council Meeting Held February 5, 2018 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

a. 18-024 Employee of the Quarter Presentation - Jeff Nash, Fire Department and 
Dave McDonald, Public Works Department 

CITY CLERK 

CITY MANAGER 

a. 18-025 Accept the Monthly Financial Reports for the Month of January 2018 

City of Jacksonville Beach Page 1 Printed on 2/1412018 



City Council 

b. 18-026 

c. 18-027 

d. 18-028 

e. 18-029 

RESOLUTIONS 

a. 18-035 

b. 18-030 

City of Jacksonville Beach 

Agenda February 19, 2018 

Public Hearing and City Council Approval of Projects for Inclusion in the FY 
2018-2019 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application to the 
City of Jacksonville 

Approve the Revised Contract with Garland/DBS, Inc. for Water Intrusion 
Repairs at the Community Services Center Facility Located at 850 6th 
Avenue South 

Award Sand Fencing Construction from 16th Avenue South to the St. Johns 
County Line to Lloyd's Construction and Consulting, LLC. and Authorize 
Construction Administration Services to Applied Technology & 
Management, Inc. 

Approval of Bid No. 1718-04 - Electric Tools and Equipment - 12 Months 
Requirements · 

RESOLUTION NO. 2004-2018 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 
POSITION CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN FOR MANAGERIAL, 
PROFESSIONAL, ADMINISTRATIVE AND UNCLASSIFIED (NON-UNION) 
POSITIONS, EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 19, 2018. (Adds a Procurement 
Associate, and Assistant Ocean Rescue Supervisor.) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2005-2018 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, 
AS A PARTICIPANT OF FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY'S 
ALL-REQU IREMENTS PROJECT, (I ) PROVIDING FOR THE 
INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN FINDINGS, DEFINED TERMS, AND 
GENERAL PROVISIONS; (II) APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE 
ALL-REQU IREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT CONTRACT 
BETWEEN FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY AND THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH; (Ill) CONSENTING TO THE TRANSFER AND 
ASSIGNMENT OF POWER SUPPLY ENTITLEMENT SHARES BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF VERO BEACH AND FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER 
AGENCY; (IV) CONSENTING TO THE WAIVER OF CERTAIN 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY 
PROJECT CONTRACT BETWEEN FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER 
AGENCY AND THE CITY OF VERO BEACH, AND WAIVING CERTAIN 
RIGHTS OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH TO HAVE SUCH 
WAIVERS FOR THE CITY OF VERO BEACH MADE APPLICABLE TO 
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH'S ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER 
SUPPLY PROJECT CONTRACT; (V) PROVIDING FOR THE MUTUAL 
RELEASE BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND THE CITY OF 
VERO BEACH, FLORIDA, FOR OBLIGATIONS AND CLAIMS RELATED 

Pagel Printed on 211412018 



City Council 

c. 18-031 

City of Jacksonville Beach 

Agenda February 19, 2018 

TO FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY; (VI) PROVIDING FOR THE 
MUTUAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF THE CITY OF VERO BEACH FROM 
OBLIGATIONS AND CLAIMS RELATED TO THE POWER SUPPLY 
PROJECTS; (VII) PROVIDING FOR THE ASSIGNMENT OF CERTAIN 
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE VERO BEACH CONTRACTS TO 
BE ASSIGNED TO THE BOND TRUSTEE FOR THE ALL-REQUIREMENTS 
POWER SUPPLY PROJECT FOR THE ENFORCEMENT OF SUCH 
CONTRACTS; {VIII) AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 
TO PROVIDE A CERTIFIED COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION TO FLORIDA 
MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY; (IX) DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED OFFICERS 
OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH; (X) TAKING CERTAIN OTHER 
ACTIONS; AND (XI) PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (Approves 
amendments to the All-Requirements Power Supply Contract to remove 
Vero Beach from the All-Requirements Project, consents to the transfer 
and assignment of Vero Beach power entitlements, and consents to 
waivers of certain requirements of the All-Requirements Project.) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2006-2018 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AS A 
PARTICIPANT OF FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY'S ST. LUCIE 
PROJECT, (I) PROVIDING FOR THE INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN 
FINDINGS, DEFINED TERMS, AND GENERAL PROVISIONS; (II) 
APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE ST. LUCIE POWER SALES 
CONTRACT AND PROJECT SUPPORT CONTRACT BETWEEN FLORIDA 
MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY AND THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH; 
{Ill} CONSENTING TO THE TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT OF POWER 
SUPPLY ENTITLEMENT SHARES BETWEEN THE CITY OF VERO BEACH 
AND FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY; (IV) CONSENTING TO 
AMENDMENTS OF THE ST. LUCIE POWER SALES CONTRACT AND 
PROJECT SUPPORT CONTRACT BETWEEN FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER 
AGENCY AND THE CITY OF VERO BEACH, AND WAIVING CERTAIN 
RIGHTS TO HAVE SUCH AMENDMENTS INCLUDED IN THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH'S ST. LUCIE POWER SALES CONTRACT AND 
PROJECT SUPPORT CONTRACT; (V) PROVIDING FOR THE MUTUAL 
RELEASE BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND THE CITY OF 
VERO BEACH, FLORIDA, FOR OBLIGATIONS AND CLAIMS RELATED TO 
FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY; (VI) PROVIDING FOR THE 
MUTUAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF THE CITY OF VERO BEACH FROM 
OBLIGATIONS RELATED TO THE ST. LUCIE PROJECT; (VII) PROVIDING 
FOR THE ASSIGNMENT OF CERTAIN RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER 
THE VERO BEACH ST. LUCIE CONTRACTS TO THE ST. LUCIE BOND 
TRUSTEE TO ENFORCE SUCH CONTRACTS; (VIII) AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH TO PROVIDE A CERTIFIED COPY OF 
THIS RESOLUTION TO FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY; (IX) 
DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED OFFICERS OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH; (X) TAKING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS; AND (XI) PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (Approves amendments to the FMPA St. Lucie Project 
Power Sales and Project Support Contract and authorizes The City of 
Vero Beach to exit the St. Lucie Project.) 

Page3 Printed on 211412018 



February 19, 2018 City Council Agenda 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-8102 (Second Reading) (PUBLIC HEARING) 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2011-8001, AS AMENDED BY ORDINANCE NO. 
2017-8086, SUPPLEMENTING THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING 
REGULATIONS AND ZONING ATLAS FOR THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH, FLORIDA, AS PROVIDED UNDER CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES OF SAID CITY. (Updates proposed site plan for the 
Baptist Medical Center-Beaches.) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-8103 (Second Reading) 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND 
ESTABLISHING A COMPREHENSIVE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATION AND OFFICIAL ZONING MAP FOR THE INCORPORATED 
AREA OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AS 
AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 163.3202, FLORIDA STATUTES, BY 
AMENDING ARTICLE VII, DIVISION 2. SECTION 34-347. 
REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: RD TO AFFIRM AND STATE THAT 
ARTICLE VI, DIVISION 3. ZONING ATLAS AND TEXT AMENDMENTS 
REGULATIONS ARE APPLICABLE TO THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF 
APPLICATIONS FOR REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: RD ZONING 
DESIGNATION, AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (Requires rezonings to RD to 
be approved or denied based on the same standards as other 
rezoning requests.) 

ORDINANCE NO.  2018-8104 (Second Reading) (PUBLIC HEARING)

ORDINANCES 

Page 4 City of Jacksonville Beach Printed on 2/14/2018 

a. 18-032

b. 18-033

c. 18-034

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND 
ESTABLISHING A COMPREHENSIVE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATION AND OFFICIAL ZONING MAP FOR THE INCORPORATED 
AREA OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AS 
AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 163.3202, FLORIDA STATUTES, BY 
AMENDING ARTICLE IV. DEFINITIONS TO ADD DEFINITIONS FOR 
“MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER”, “MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
TREATMENT CENTER DISPENSING FACILITY” AND “PHARMACY”, BY 
AMENDING ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 34-343 TO ADD “MEDICAL 
MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER DISPENSING FACILITY” AND 
“PHARMACY” TO THE LIST OF PERMITTED USES IN THE 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL: C-2 ZONING DISTRICT, BY AMENDING 
SECTIONS 34-342 AND 34-345 TO ADD “MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
TREATMENT  CENTER  DISPENSING  FACILITY”  AND “PHARMACY” TO 



City Council 

ADJOURNMENT 

NOTICE 

Agenda February 19, 2018 

THE LIST OF CONDITIONAL USES IN COMMERCIAL LIMITED: C-1 AND 
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT: CBD ZONING DISTRICTS, BY 
AMENDING ARTICLE VIII SUPPLEMENTAL STANDARDS, DIVISION 2, 
TO CREATE A NEW SECTION 34-408 MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
TREATMENT CENTER DISPENSING FACILITIES AND PHARMACIES 
FOR THE INCORPORATED AREA OF THE CITY, AND PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. (Permits and regulates language regarding medical marij uana 
dispensing facilities and pharmacies.) 

In accordance with Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, any person desirous of appealing any decision reached at this 
meeting may need a record of the proceedings. Such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

The public is encouraged to speak on issues on this Agenda that concern them. Anyone who wishes to speak should 
submit the request to the City Clerk or to the recording secretary prior to the beginning of the meeting. These forms 
are available at the entrance of the City Council Chambers for your convenience. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities 
needing special accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk's Office at (904) 
247-6299, extension JO, no later than one business day before the meeting. 

City of Jacksonville Beach Page5 Printed on 211412018 



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, February 5, 2018 - 6:15 P.M. 
City Council Conference Room, 1st Floor 
11North3rd Street, Jacksonville Beach, FL 

The Council Briefing began at 6:15 P.M. 

The following City Council Members were in attendance: 

Mayor: William C. Latham 

Council Members: Lee Buck 
Bruce Thomason 

JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH 

Also present were City Manager George Forbes, Deputy City M er Trish ooerts, Director of Beaches 
Energy Services Allen Putnam, Director of Planning and De-velop en Bill Mann, PQlice hief Pat 
Dooley, Commander Mark Evans and Property and Procurement ce Luis Flores. 

Purpose of Briefing 

City Manager 

DONNA Marathon 

Commander Mark Evans gave an overv·ew1Qfthe Police ~overage d set-up for the upcoming DONNA 
Marathon this Sunday. Commander EVans stated the polic of, cers and volunteers would be set-up by 
7:00 AM. He stated not much has cliang dfro the past years. 

Comcast 

Chief Dooley stated the Departmen of Management Services for the State of Florida renegotiated the 
provider con oact for the company ho provides data services for the Criminal Justice Information 
Servi es IS) ogram. The servic 'RFovider would now be Comcast. This renegotiation would be at 
no cost to the ity and the City Managfil has executed a letter allowing Comcast to place broadband into 
the Police buildln,g. 

Sampson Substation 

Mr. Forbes reported that er the previous Council Briefing on January 16, 2018, where he explained that 
a tap changer for one o the large transformers (I'-3 a 224 MVA transformer) at the Sampson Substation 
had failed causing the transformer to no longer be operable, and a tap changer on one of our other 
transformers (T-2 112 MVA) also failed. 

Mr. Allen Putnam, Director of Beaches Energy, stated T-2, the smaller of the two transformers, would 
cost approximately $89,000 to repair and the repair could take approximately 6 weeks. Mr. Forbes stated 
an emergency purchase order was signed to replace the T-2 tap changer. 

CC Briefing 180205 min Page I of3 



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, February 5, 2018, 6: 15 P.M. 

Mr. Putnam stated the cost to replace the larger transformer (T-3 224 MVA) has been budgeted for 2020, 
will cost approximately $3 .0 million, and that it could take up to 48 weeks to be delivered; one of the 
smaller 112 MVA transformers is scheduled for replacement a few years later. We may also sign an 
emergency purchase order to repair the T-3 transformer. 

Community Service Center 

Industrial Park tenant 

Mr. Forbes stated that Mauriello's Lawn Service, a tenant for the industrial p k, was scheduled to take 
occupancy of the site in August 2017. However, due to costs associated with site ork fhat the tenant was 
paying, they were offered a three-month grace period of , ee ren ending in Dec ber. Mr. Flores reported 
that due to permitting and other scheduling issues tha dela ed tli tenant fro occupying the space, the 
move in date has been pushed back to April and the grace peFi wohld b extended accordingly. 

FDOT Drainage Improvement Project 

CRA 

Mr. Forbes stated the Ci llas received an unsolicited offer from Mr. Steve Diebenow, the representative 
for the owner of the former Johnson Gallery property. Mr. Forbes stated the offer has not been opened 
and the contents are unknown. The City has contacted its Redevelopment attorneys for guidance. 

The briefing adjourned at 6:50 P.M. 

Submitted by: Jodilynn Byrd 
Administrative Assistant 

CC Briefing 180205 min Page 2 of3 



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, February 5, 2018, 6:15 P.M. 

CC Briefing 180205 min 

Approved: 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Page 3 of3 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 
held Monday, February 5, 2018, at 7:00 P.M. 
in the Council Chambers, 11North3rd Street, 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH 

Council Member Wilson gave the invocation, followed by the salute to the flag. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Latham called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor: William C. Latham 

Council Members: Lee Buck 
Bruce Thomason 

Keith Doherty(absent) 
Phil Vogelsang 

Christine Hoffman 
J eanell Wilson 

Also present were City Manager George Forbes, Deputy City Manager Trish Roberts, City Attorney 
Susan Erdelyi, Chief Financial Officer Karen Nelson, Planning and Development Director Bill 
Mann, Parks and Recreation Director Jason Phitides, Beaches Energy Director Allen Putnam, 
Project Engineer Robin Smith, Fire Marshal Steven Sciotto, City Clerk Laurie Scott, and Staff 
Assistant Mandy Murnane. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

It was moved by Ms. Wilson, seconded by Ms. Hoffman, and passed unanimously, to approve the 
following minutes: 

• City Council Briefing held January 16, 2018 
• Regular City Council Meeting held January 16, 2018 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS 

• Sonja Fitch, 1425 9th Street South, Jacksonville Beach, spoke regarding her 3D 
political art posted on the fence around her property. 

• Rico Nieves, 53 1 7th A venue North, Jacksonville Beach, spoke regarding safety 
around Jacksonville Beach. 

• Chris Younger, 3738 Sanctuary Way South, a Firefighter with the City of Jacksonville 
Fire Department, spoke regarding a Fire EMS Handout. 

CC 180116 mins Page 1 of 11 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5, 2018 

The following individuals spoke in opposition to the South Beach Parkway Tennis Court 
Fee Schedule adopted during the City Council Meeting on January 16, 2018: 

• Suzanne Nixon, 1604 61
h Street South, Jacksonville Beach 

• Alex Jones, 2229 South Beach Parkway, Jacksonville Beach 
• Richard Lamb, 2918 Merrill Boulevard, Jacksonville Beach 

The following individuals were opposed to the South Beach Parkway Tennis Fee Schedule, 
but did not wish to address the Council: 

• Jane Kosut, 1969 Sevilla Boulevard West, Atlantic Beach 
• Judy Scheckland, 1985 Brista De Mar Circle, Atlantic Beach 
• Judith Daniel, 2712 America Avenue, Jacksonville Beach 
• Penny Dollar, 125 Greendale Drive, Ponte Vedra 
• Nancy Ramirez, 2918 Merrill Boulevard, Jacksonville Beach 
• Trisha Gabriel, 9 Freedom Way, Jacksonville Beach 
• Cherie Johnson, 127 6th Avenue South, Jacksonville Beach 
• Justin Gabriel, 9 Freedom Way, Jacksonville Beach 
• Samantha Lowry, 3471 Snowy Egret Way, Jacksonville Beach 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

CITY CLERK 

CITY MANAGER 

(a) Item #18-013 - Consider removing the street barricade at 16th Avenue North 
and 1st Street. 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, that 
based on the citizen responses, leave the barricade in place at 1st Street 
and 16th Avenue North. 

Discussion: Mayor Latham explained there was an overwhelming response m 
opposition to removing the barricade. 

Motion to Remove: It was moved by Mayor Latham to terminate the discussion. 
There was no second to the motion. 

Speakers: 

The following individuals spoke in opposition to removing the barricade: 

• Lyle Reimann, 91 19th Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Beth Acheson, 1824 1st Street North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Frederick Smolen, 104 17th Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach 

The following individuals were opposed to removing the barricade but did not wish 
to address the Council: 

• Linda Dalton, 116 19th Avenue North, Unit 301, Jacksonville Beach 
• Pete Dalton, 116 19th Avenue North, Unit 301, Jacksonville Beach 

CC 180205 mins Page 2of11 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5, 2018 

• Linda White, 1901 1st Street South, Unit 1401, Jacksonville Beach 
• David White, 1901 1st Street South, Unit 1401, Jacksonville Beach 
• Athena Mann, 1901 1st Street North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Josh Messinger, 220 Hopkins, Neptune Beach 
• Jean Francis, 116 19th Avenue North, Unit 201, Jacksonville Beach 
• Robert Wardrop II, 116 19th Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Claire Hensinger, 1727 1st Street North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Rita McAndrews Giblin, 1901 1st Street North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Jane Harris, 116 19th Avenue North, Unit 501 , Jacksonville Beach 
• Eric Harris, 116 19th Avenue North, Unit 501 , Jacksonville Beach 
• Mary Mika, 116 19th Avenue North, Unit 402, Jacksonville Beach 
• Kirk Wiegers, 1701 1st Street North, Unit B6, Jacksonville Beach 
• Susan Wiegers, 1701 1st Street North, Unit B6, Jacksonville Beach 
• Cyndy Trimmer, 1 Independent Drive, Suite 1200, Jacksonville 
• Dan Ivan, 1701 1st Street North, Unit 8A, Jacksonville Beach 
• Michael Yerington, 112 17th Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Elizabeth Yerington, 112 17th Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Delina Auld, 106 17th Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Will Smith, 1930 1st Street North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Vivian Ems, 1924 1st Street North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Richard Smith, 1924 1st Street North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Cyndi Catir, 1701 1st Street North, Unit 3A, Jacksonville Beach 
• Cathy Culligan, 1701 1st Street North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Carol Fonville, 1712 1st Street North, Unit 101, Jacksonville Beach 
• Don Hodge, 1712 1st Street North, Unit 101, Jacksonville Beach 
• Kaye Burnette, 116 19th Avenue North, Unit 603, Jacksonville Beach 
• Joy Esler, 136 19th Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Aarin Esler, 136 19th Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Sharon Reimann, 91 19th Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Larry Walter, 1901 1st Street North, Jacksonville Beach 
• James Coleman, 228 18th Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach 

Discussion: Mr. Buck, Mr. Vogelsang, and Ms. Hoffman stated their support towards 
moving forward with the beautification of the barricade. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Buck, Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, 
and Mayor Latham. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

(b) Item #18-014 - Authorize Water Main Upgrade for Increased Fire Flow for 
Seascape Condominiums (16th Avenue South - Ocean Drive) with G&H 
Construction, Inc. 

Motion: 

CC 180205 mins 

It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to 
authorize the construction of an 8-inch PVC Water Main loop to 
improve fire flow to Seascape Condominiums by change order to our 
contract with G & H Construction, Incorporated, titled "Bid 1617-03, 

Page 3of11 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5, 2018 

Miscellaneous Water Main Improvements - Phase D Project," in the 
amount of $69,405.70 plus a 10% contingency, for a total cost not to 
exceed $76,346.27, as described in the memorandum from the Public 
Works Director dated January 19, 2018. 

Discussion: Mr. Forbes stated that in April 2017, the Fire Marshal notified Public 
Works that Seascape Condominiums had failed its annual fire pump test. After 
reviewing the water infrastructure in the area, Public Works staff realized that the 
existing water mains that served the condominium consist of heavily tuberculated, 
old cast iron piping. To improve water volume for fire flow to the condominium, it 
was determined necessary to design and install a new 8-inch PVC water main loop. 

Fire Marshal Steven Sciotto said the Seascape Condominium would need to change 
their main service line at their own expense to bring the project to completion. 

Robin Smith, Public Works, stated there would be parts of the street that close while 
the work is performed. 

Roll call vote: Ayes-Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, Buck, 
and Mayor Latham. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

(c) Item #18-015 -Award Bid Number 1718-03 Fiber Optic Cable - Sampson to Ft. 
Diego for Beaches Energy Services (BES) Guana Substation Expansion. 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to award 
Bid 1718-03 - Fiber Optic Cable - Sampson to Ft. Diego to the lowest 
responsive bidder, Gresco. 

Discussion: Mr. Forbes explained the communications schemes between electric 
utility substations provide for enhanced protection and control capabilities. As part 
of Beaches Energy Guana substation expansion, high-speed microprocessor 
protective relays have been incorporated into the relaying design scheme for the 
transmission lines connecting Guana substation to the Sampson substation and Ft. 
Diego substation. 

Director of Beaches Energy, Allen Putnam, reiterated the approval of this agenda item 
allows for the purchase of fiber optic material only. The installation would be 
awarded to a different contractor. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, Buck, Hoffman, 
and Mayor Latham. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

(d) Item #18-016 - Award Bid Number 1718-06 to the lowest responsive bidder, 
Playspace Services, for the construction of the splash pad expansion at South 
Beach Park. 

Motion: 

cc 180205 mins 

It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to 
approve the purchase of splash pad water features and operating 
equipment, and award Bid Number 1718-06 to the lowest responsive 

Page 4of11 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5, 2018 

bidder, Playspace Services, for the construction of the splash pad 
expansion at South Beach Park, as described in the memorandum from 
the Director of Parks and Recreation dated January 24th, 2018. 

Discussion: Mr. Forbes explained that due to the relatively high flow rate, it 
becomes difficult for the younger children, particularly toddlers, to enjoy as much 
of the water feature. Approved for funding by the Community Redevelopment 
Agency, the design includes four (4) water features and an access gate that would 
separate the two splash pads. 

Ms. Hoffman, Ms. Wilson, Mr. Vogelsang, and Mayor Latham stated their support 
for the expansion of South Beach Park. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Vogelsang, Wilson, Buck, Hoffman, Thomason, 
and Mayor Latham. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

RESOLUTIONS: 

(a) Item #18-017 - RESOLUTION NO. 2002-2018 

cc 180205 mins 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Resolution No. 2002-2018, by 
title only, whereupon Ms. Scott read the following: 

"A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 
PROVIDING CONDITIONAL AUTHORIZATION TO COMMIT 
FINANCIALLY TO A SPECIFIED PORTION OF THE SOLAR ENERGY 
ACQUIRED BY THE FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY IN THE 
EVENT FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY ACQUIRES SUCH 
SOLAR ENERGY; PROVIDING CONDITIONAL AUTHORIZATION TO 
COMMIT TO BEING BOUND BY SECTION [X] OF RATE SCHEDULE B-1 
OF THE ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT; 
DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED OFFICERS; APPROVING AND TAKING 
CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE." 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to adopt 
Resolution 2002-2018 to authorize the City of Jacksonville Beach's 
Community Solar Power Purchase Agreement. 

Discussion: Mr. Forbes said the FMPA is entering into a Power Purchase Agreement 
with a third-party solar generating utility to supply solar power to participating FMPA 
members. The price per MWh will be determined in the Purchase Agreement and will 
not change over the life of the contract. We anticipate it will be a 20-30 year contract 
at less than $3 8 per MWh. If the proposed cost is greater than $3 8 per MWh, Beaches 
Energy reserves the option of withdrawing from the project without penalty. 

In order to finalize the contract, FMPA has requested that the commitment be 
memorialized in a Resolution. The Resolution binds the City to a share of no more 
than 10 megawatts provided the dollar per megawatt share does not exceed $38/MW 

Page 5of 11 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5, 2018 

hour. The Resolution also authorizes the Mayor and City Manager to execute the 
FMPA-All-Requirements Project (ARP) Solar Project Participation Agreement and 
other related documents. 

Mayor Latham stated his support for the agenda item. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Wilson, Buck, Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, 
and Mayor Latham. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

(b) Item #18-018 - RESOLUTION NO. 2003-2018 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Resolution No. 2003-2018, by 
title only, whereupon Ms. Scott read the following: 

"A RESOLUTION REVISING ELECTRIC RATES FOR BEACHES ENERGY 
SERVICES." 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to adopt 
Resolution No. 2003-2018 revising electric rates for Beaches Energy 
Services. 

Discussion: Mr. Forbes said the proposed increase in the non-fuel portion of the 
energy rate by $1.00 per thousand kilowatt-hours would offset the increase in 
operating costs and planned capital improvements. This would allow the City to 
reduce the bulk power cost adjustment by $4.00 per thousand kilowatt-hours, which 
will equate to a net dollar decrease of$3 .00 per 1,000-kilowatt hours. The cumulative 
reduction in electric rates since 2010 is $24. This represents an average decrease of 
$288 annually per residential customer, and much more for commercial customers, 
depending upon their usage. 

Ms. Wilson stated her support for the agenda item. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Buck, Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, 
and Mayor Latham. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

ORDINANCES: 

(a) Item #18-019 - ORDINANCE NO. 2018-8103 (First Reading)(Public Hearing) 

CC 180205 mins 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2018-8103, by 
title only, whereupon Ms. Scott read the following: 

"AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND 
ESTABLISHING A COMPREHENSIVE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATION AND OFFICIAL ZONING MAP FOR THE 
INCORPORATED AREA OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 163.3202, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, BY AMENDING ARTICLE VII, DIVISION 2. SECTION 34-
347. REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: RD TO AFFIRM AND STATE THAT 

Page 6of11 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5, 2018 

ARTICLE VI, DIVISION 3. ZONING ATLAS AND TEXT AMENDMENTS 
REGULATIONS ARE APPLICABLE TO THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL 
OF APPLICATIONS FOR REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: RD ZONING 
DESIGNATION, AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (Requires 
rezonings to RD be approved or denied based on the same standards as other 
rezoning requests.)" 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to 
adopt City Ordinance 2018-8103, amending the text of the Land 
Development Code Section 34-347, to reference Article VI, 
Division 3, "Zoning Atlas and Code Amendments" regulations as 
being applicable standards for processing Redevelopment District: 
RD rezoning applications. 

Summary: Mr. Forbes said it has historically and consistently been the 
interpretation of staff that because a request for RD zoning designation is at its core 
a rezoning request, changing the zoning designation from a parcel's current zoning 
designation should be reviewed and approved or deny based on the same standards 
as are all rezoning requests. 

Mayor Latham opened the Public Hearing. 

Speakers: 

• Cynthia K. Trimmer, 1 Independent Drive, #1200, Jacksonville, present on 
behalf of attorney, Steven Diebenow, requested the Council deny the 
amendment as proposed. 

Mayor Latham closed the Public Hearing. 

Discussion: City Attorney, Susan Erdelyi, recommended not changing the City's 
historical interpretation of the RD zoning procedures. 

Roll call vote: Ayes-Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, Buck, 
and Mayor Latham. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

(b) Item #18-020 - ORDINANCE NO. 2018-8102 (First Reading) (Public Hearing) 

cc 180205 mins 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2018-8102, by 
title only, whereupon Ms. Scott read the following: 

"AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2011-8001, AS AMENDED BY ORDINANCE NO. 
2017-8086, SUPPLEMENTING THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING 
REGULATIONS AND ZONING ATLAS FOR THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AS PROVIDED UNDER CHAPTER 
34 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF SAID CITY. (Updated proposed site 
plan for the Baptist Medical Center-Beaches.)" 

Page 7of11 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5, 2018 

cc 180205 mins 

Mayor Latham read the following: 

"This ordinance to amend the PUD zoning regulations of a property that is before 
this Council for a public hearing and consideration on its first reading. Under the 
laws of the State of Florida, an application to amend the zoning regulations 
governing a property is handled as a 'quasi-judicial ' proceeding. A quasi-judicial 
proceeding means that a governing body is now functioning in a manner similar to 
a court with the Mayor and Council sitting as impartial decision makers hearing 
testimony and questioning presenters, who are to provide substantial and competent 
evidence to support their side of the issue. It is the duty of the Council to arrive at 
sound decisions regarding the use of property within the City. This includes 
receiving citizen input regarding the proposed use on the neighborhood, especially 
where the input is fact-based and not a simple expression of opinion. 

It is the applicant's burden to demonstrate that their application is consistent with 
the Land Development Code and the Comprehensive Plan. If the applicant is 
successful in showing consistency, then it is up to the local government to produce 
competent, substantial evidence of record that the application should be denied. The 
Council's decision on a zoning amendment application is based on the criteria set 
forth in Section 34-211 of the Land Development Code. Each member of the 
Council has been provided a copy of the criteria. 

In addition, the Council has received a copy of the application, and the staff and 
Planning Commission reports on this PUD zoning amendment request." 

Public Hearing 
Mayor Latham opened the public hearing on Ordinance No. 2018-8102 and asked 
for the spokesperson of the applicant to address the City Council. 

Speakers 
• Paul Harden, 501 Riverside Avenue, representing Baptist Medical Center 

Beaches, was present to answer any questions. 

Mayor Latham closed the Public Hearing. 

Ex-Parte Communications 
Mayor Latham read the following statement for the record: 
"Before requesting a motion on this ordinance, beginning with myself, each of the 
members is requested to indicate for the record both the names of persons and the 
substance of any ex parte communications regarding this application. An ex parte 
communication refers to any meeting or discussion with a person or citizen who 
may have an interest in this decision, which occurred outside of the public hearing 
process." 

There were no ex-parte communications from the City Council. 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to 
adopt Ordinance No. 2018-8102, amending Planned Unit 
Development: PUD Ordinance (Ordinance 2011 -8001), as 

Page 8of11 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5, 2018 

CC 180205 mins 

amended, by revising the approved Preliminary PUD Development 
Plan to provide updated proposed building footprints for the hospital 
campus. 

Discussion: Mayor Latham read the following statement for the record: 
"Before opening the floor for discussion or questions by the Council, please be 
reminded that our decision will be based on the criteria set forth in the Land 
Development Code, and the Council is required to approve a clear statement of 
specific findings of fact stating the basis upon which such facts were determined 
and the decision was made." 

Summary: Mr. Forbes reviewed the applicant's proposal to modify the existing 
PUD ordinance governing the campus as follows: 

• Converts the proposed five-story parking garage located between Medical Office 
Building B and Medical Office Building C to a new Medical Office Building 
(D), not to exceed 65,000 square feet. 

• Relocate/redesign the currently approved parking garage to a maximum 35 ' 
height structure to be oriented along Roberts Drive as shown on the proposed 
Preliminary PUD Development Plan, providing a minimum 10' garage and/or 
surface-parking setback along Roberts Drive. All other structures will require a 
20' setback. 

• Provide an additional 27 ,000 square feet of support and ancillary space to the 
main hospital building. 

• Provide for a maximum building area on Parcel B of 12,000 square feet, and on 
Parcel C (across Roberts Drive) a maximum building area of 60,000 square feet, 
with both facilities limited to a maximum 35' height. 

The most significant element of the proposed development is the replacement of the 
five-story parking garage building with a medical office building and moving the 
garage location to tlie west along the Roberts Drive frontage of the campus. 

Director of Planning and Development, Bill Mann, explained how the modifications 
would help minimize the impact of the surrounding residential area. 

Mr. Forbes requested changing the building height of 60-feet in the exhibit to 55-
feet in order to comply with the height restriction referendum. 

1. Exhibit A, Page 2, final bullet to read: 
• A 55-foot tall, five-story parking garage located between Medical 

Office Building "C" and Medical Office Building "B." Currently 
these development rights are unused on the property. 

2. Exhibit A, Page 3, second bullet to read: 
• A medical office building containing up to 65,000 square feet of 

non-ancillary medical, business and/or professional offices serving 
affiliated/community physicians and professionals. The new 
building, as shown in Preliminary Development Plan, will be in the 
general location of the proposed fifty-five (55) foot tall parking 

Page 9of11 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5, 2018 

garage as shown on the Preliminary Development Plan attached to 
Ordinance 2017-8086. 

3. Exhibit A, Page 5, 'Height:' line one to read: 
"Medical office building "D" shall not exceed fifty-five (55) feet in height." 

Motion to Amend: It was moved by Mr. Vogelsang, seconded by Ms. 
Hoffman, to amend the original motion to include the 55 ' to 
the exhibit. 

Mr. Harden requested the height of the medical office building be decided at a later 
date. 

Ms. Erdelyi stated that were the City to approve a 60-foot office building height at 
this time, the City would be in violation from the City Charter. 

Ms. Erdelyi recommended the Council agree to fifty-five (55) feet or deny the 
ordinance. 

Roll call vote: Ayes -Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, Buck, Hoffman, 
and Mayor Latham. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

(c) Item #18-021 - ORDINANCE NO. 2018-8104 (First Reading)(Public Hearing) 

CC 180205 mins 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2018-8104, by 
title only, whereupon Ms. Scott read the following: 

"AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND 
ESTABLISHING A COMPREHENSIVE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATION AND OFFICIAL ZONING MAP FOR THE 
INCORPORATED AREA OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 163.3202, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, BY AMENDING ARTICLE IV. DEFINITIONS TO ADD 
DEFINITIONS FOR "MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER", 
"MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER DISPENSING 
FACILITY" AND "PHARMACY", BY AMENDING ARTICLE VIII, 
SECTION 34-343 TO ADD "MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT 
CENTER DISPENSING FACILITY" AND "PHARMACY" TO THE LIST 
OF PERMITTED USES IN THE COMMERCIAL GENERAL: C-2 ZONING 
DISTRICT, BY AMENDING SECTIONS 34-342 AND 34-345 TO ADD 
"MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER DISPENSING 
FACILITY" AND "PHARMACY" TO THE LIST OF CONDITIONAL USES 
IN COMMERCIAL LIMITED: C-1 AND CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT: 
CBD ZONING DISTRICTS, BY AMENDING ARTICLE VIII 
SUPPLEMENTAL STANDARDS, DIVISION 2, TO CREATE A NEW 
SECTION 34-408 MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER 
DISPENSING FACILITIES AND PHARMACIES FOR THE 
INCORPORATED AREA OF THE CITY, AND PROVIDING FOR 

Page 10of11 



Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, February 5, 2018 

CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE." 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to 
adopt Ordinance No. 2018-8104, amending the text of the Land 
Development Code by adding new definitions, and permitting and 
regulatory language regarding Medical Marijuana Treatment Center 
Dispensing Facilities and Pharmacies. 

Summary: Mr. Forbes stated the proposed ordinance would include hours of 
operation limitations (may not operate between 9:00 pm and 7:00 am), and 
proximity requirements (cannot be located within 500 feet from another dispensing 
facility, or public or private school) that are consistent with Florida Statutes. 

Mayor Latham opened the Public Hearing. 

Speakers: 

• Shandy Thompson, 522 3rc1 A venue South, Jacksonville Beach, spoke in 
favor of the agenda item. 

Mayor Latham closed the Public Hearing. 

Discussion: Mr. Thomason asked what would happen if a facility was approved 
and then subsequently someone would like to open a school within 500 feet. 

Ms. Erdelyi responded the school could not open, as state law speaks to the 500-
feet rule. 

To answer Mayor Latham's inquiry regarding hours of operation, Mr. Mann stated 
pharmacies may determine their own hours of operation within the set limitatfons. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Vogelsang, Wilson, Buck, Hoffman, Thomason, 
and Mayor Latham. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:45 P.M. 

Submitted by: Laurie Scott 
City Clerk 

CC 180205 mins 

Approval: 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Page 11of11 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6263 

Fax: 904.247.6169 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

MEMORANDUM 

George Forbes, City Manager 

Ann Meuse, Human Resources Director 

January 30, 2018 

Employee of the Quarter Award 
4th Quarter 2017 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

This is to advise that the final determination for Employees of the Quarter 
for the 4th Quarter of 2017 have been made. It is my pleasure to 

announce the following selections: 

Name Department 

Jeff Nash Fire 
Dave McDonald Public Works 

Please refer to the attached letter regarding their achievements. 

According to our Awards Program, they should be recognized by the City 
Council with a personalized letter from you and the City of Jacksonville 
Beach Employee of the Quarter pin. I am forwarding this information to 

you so that a presentation can be made at the February 19, 2018, Council 
Meeting. The recipients will be notified to attend. 

Additionally, for your information, the Department Directors will be having 
a departmental award ceremony which will include the presentation of a 
check in the amount of $100 and a personalized certificate. 

Attachment 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6268 

Fax: 904.247.6276 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

February 6, 2018 

Jeff Nash 
Fire Department 

Dear Jeff, 

OFFICE OF CITY MANAGER 

It is with great pleasure that we present you this letter of appreciation for your 

outstanding job performance in the Fire Department. You have been selected as 

an Employee of the Quarter for the 4th Quarter of 2017. 

You are being recognized for: 

• For assuming additional duties and responsibilities of the Shift 
Commander for the 8-shift, in addition to your normal Fire Lieutenant 

duties for the past six months; 

• And for serving as the Committee Chair Person for our New Fire Truck 
Purchasing Committee. As Committee Chair, you met with and organized 

committee meetings with the vendors, and researched different 

manufacturers' specifications. 

Please accept our sincere gratitude and thanks for your outstanding 

performance. It truly exemplifies the dedication and spirit, which we all strive to 
attain as public employees. 

Sincerely, 

George D. Forbes 
City Manager 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6268 

Fax: 904.247.6276 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

OFFICE OF CITY MANAGER 

February 6, 2018 

David McDonald 
Public Works Department 

Dear David, 

It is with great pleasure that we present you this letter of appreciation for your 

outstanding job performance in the Public Works Department. You have been 
selected as an Employee of the Quarter for the 4th Quarter of 2017. 

You are being recognized for: 

• For developing a plan to protect residents and their property during 

Hurricane Irma. You identified the street ends that the ocean breached 
during Hurricane Matthew in 2016, and had your crews dump sand at 

those street ends during Hurricane Irma. By your actions you prevented 
flooding at these locations, saving residents thousands of dollars in 

damage to their property; 

• And for always having a "can do" attitude and promoting a cooperative 
spirt in the Public Works department. Your motivate all who work with you 

to "make it happen" and to provide exceptional customer service. 

Please accept our sincere gratitude and thanks for your outstanding 
performance. It truly exemplifies the dedication and spirit, which we all strive to 

attain as public employees. 

Sincerely, 

George D. Forbes 

City Manager 



JACl(SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6274 

Fax: 904.270.1642 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

George D. Forbes, City Manager 

Karen Nelson, Chief Financial Officer 

Monthly Financial Reports for January 2018 

February 7, 2018 

Action Requested 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

Accept the monthly financial reports for the month of January 2018. 

Background 

The monthly financial reports for January 2018 are provided for your information 
and review. These reports can be found in the "Reports and Information" portion 
of this agenda. 

Recommendation 

Accept the financial reports for the month of January 2018, as submitted by the 
Chief Financial Officer. 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

2508 South Beach 

Parkway 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6236 

Fax: 904.247.6143 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

George D. Forbes 

City Manager 

Jason Phitides 

Director of Parks and Recreation 

February 7, 2018 

SUBJECT: Proposed Community Development Block Grant Projects for 
FY 2018-2019 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Public Hearing and City Council approval of projects for inclusion in the FY 2018-
2019 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application to the City of 
Jacksonville. 

BACKGROUND: 

The City participates with the City of Jacksonville , along with the other Beach 
cities , in sharing the Entitlement Funding this area receives from Federal 
Community Development Block Grants (CDBG). The CDBG funds must be 
spent to improve the quality of life for people with low and moderate incomes. 
The City's portion is utilized to fund the Community Assisted Policing Effort 
(CAPE) Program and the Carver Center Recreation Program. 

We are requesting full funding for both programs in our FY 2018-2019 CDBG 
grant application . Following is a breakdown of the funding request and priority 
rank: 

Proposed Projects 

Carver Center Recreation Program: 
• Salary & Benefits for one (1) Recreation Supervisor 
• Salary, Workers Comp & Pension for one (1) part

time, year-round Recreation Leader 
• Salary & Workers Comp for one (1) part-time, year

round Tutor 

Community Assisted Policing Effort: 
• Salary & Benefits for one (1) police officer 

Proposed 
Funding 

$114,418 

$73,097 

GRAND TOTAL $187,515 

Priority 
Rank 

#1 

#2 



The City's CDBG FY 2017-2018 grant award amount was $142,366 to fund these 
programs. Continuing these two programs at the same service level during FY 
2018-2019 requires approximately $187,515. The City Manager will adjust the 
funding levels of the recommended projects in accordance with the priority 
ranking if there is any change in the funding . 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the Mayor and City Manager to submit a Community Development 
Block Grant application for fiscal year 2018-2019 as described in a memorandum 
from the Parks and Recreation Director dated February 7, 2018. 



JACl(SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6274 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

George D. Forbes, City Manager 

Luis Flores, Property and Procurement Officer 

February 12, 2018 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: Revised Contract Pricing for Water Intrusion Repairs at the 
Community Services Center 

ACTION REQUESTED 

Approve the revised contract with Garland/DBS, Inc. for water intrusion repairs at 

the Community Services Center facility located at 850 5th Avenue South. 

BACKGROUND 

On December 4, 2017, the City Council approved $173,412 for water intrusion 

repairs at the Community Services Center facility, which included a $161 ,707 

contract with Garland/DBS for stucco, window and canopy work. A purchase order 

was issued to Garland/DBS on December 6, subcontractor mobilization occurred 

on December 14, and stucco repair work began December 18. 

Immediately upon the start of selective demolition on the 18th, the stucco 

subcontractor discovered that the wood-lath substrate was in significantly poorer 

condition than estimated and/or revealed in the destructive testing conducted in 

August 2017. Inspections by City of Jacksonville Beach (Property and 

Procurement, Building Official) and Garland staff affirmed the substrate 

deficiencies. A stop work directive was immediately issued and an updated scope 

of work created addressing the unforeseen conditions. Below is a summary of the 

revised pricing received for the new scope of work and increased quantities. 



Memo to George D. Forbes 
Community Services Center Repairs 

February 11 , 2018 

12/4/17 Pricinq: 

Garland/DBS Inc.: Proposal including new metal canopy 

Continqencv allowance 

Other work (Landscaping, Metal Coping) 

2/6/18 Revised Pricing : 

Garland/DBS Inc: Proposal includinq new metal canopy 

Contingency allowance 

Mobilization expense 

Other work (Landscapinq , Metal Copinq) 

Subtotal 

Total 

Subtotal 

Total 

Additional funds requested 

Page 2 

$146,707 

$15,000 

$161 ,707 

$11 ,705 

$173,412 

$223,997 

$15,000 

$2,921 

$241 ,918 

$11,705 

$253,623 

$80,211 

The revised cost for Garland and all contractors to address stucco, window, 

landscape, and canopy issues throughout the facility is $253,623. A contingency 

allowance of $15,000 is included for additional framing , decking, and flashing or 

window repairs per the established unit costs. The additional funding of $80,211 

will come from Leased Facilities Fund and will be included in the mid-year budget 

modification. These repairs are cost effective, considering the building is 9,166 

square feet and the average cost of build out for Class A office space is $142 per 

square foot. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the revised contract with Garland/DBS, Inc. for water intrusion repairs at 

the Community Services Center facility as described in a memorandum from the 

Property and Procurement Officer dated February 12, 2018. 



MAY 19, 2017 JACKSONVILLE BUSINESS JOURNAL 19 

·· ooe"e .. oeo 
COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE 

Building out offices in Jacksonville is on the pricey side-
Office users in Jacksonville can expect 
to pay ab<?ut $142 per square foot in out
of-pocket costs for the buildout of Class 
A office space, according to JLL research, 
putting Jacksonville costs ahead of every 
metro in Florida besides Tampa. 

The JLL study compared the build- · 
out costs from across the United States, 
noting the differences in different met
ro_ areas, including the average tenant 
improvement package for each market. 

~n Jacksonvilk the average buildout 
cost at $174.46 per square foot, but with 
an average of $3_2 per square foot pro
vided in tenant improvement packages, 
the out-of-pocket expense to landlords 
arrives at about $142 per foot of office 

- space. 
Only Tampa provided less in tenant 

improvement packages at $30 per square 
foot with the average out-of-pocket cost 
corning in at $177 .28 with a tenant's out
of-pocket cost at $147.28. 

Because hard costs do not vary much 
among the Southeast markets in terms 
ofbuildout, the amount that tenants pay 
to build out office space was below Jack
sonville's cost. 

~~. 

$196.49 I $43.61 . I $152.SS 
Average cost per square foot to build out 
an office in the U.S. 

Average landlord-provided tenant 
improvement allowance per square foot 

Average out-of-pocket cost per square 
foot tenants can expect to pay for new 
office space in the U.S. 

TOTAL FIT 
OiJTCOST 
SO.UTHEAST 
The 9outheast 
has lower 

$200 --------

than average 
construction 
costs. 

• Average Tl Package 

• • $150 -

$100 -: 

Tenant Out of Pocket $50 

Louisville Nashville Tampa Jacksonville Charlotte Miami Fort 
Lauderdale 

Orlando Raleigh 
Durham 

Atlanta West Palm 
Beach 

0 , SILICON VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 
i Highest out-of-pocket market to build ~ 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 
Lowest out-of-pocket market to build Source: JLL 8esearch 

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN? 
The national averaie for buildout costs 
for office tenants was $196.~ with an 
average tenant improvement package 
at $43.61 bringing average out-of-pock
et cost to tenants at $152.88. The most 

expensive market to build out an office 
was in Long Island, New York, with the 
average build out costing $244.13 with 
an average tenant improvement package 
of $65.However, Silicon Valley had the 
highest out-of-pocket cost for tenants . 

at $199.22. Washington, D.C. , with an 
average of $85 per square foot in tenant 
improvement packages, had the least 
expensive out-of-pocket cost for tenants 
at $103.88 per square foot. 

- Derek Gilliam 



Scope of Work - Community Center Exterior Improvements 

Revised : 

Project: 

Project Address: 

Owner: 

1-28-18 

Community Services Center Exterior Improvements 

850 6 t h Avenue South, Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

City of Jacksonville Beach 

Facility Notes {Proposing Contractor Responsible for Own Measurements): 

• Exterior stucco, interior side of parapet, and fascia, approx. 4,630 sqft 
• Stucco Soffit, approx. 1,000 sqft 
• Interface with New Canopy (to be installed following stucco replacement), approx. 85 lineal feet 
• Brick to Stucco Flashing Interface, approx. 230 lineal feet. 

SOW As Follows: 

1. References/Qualifications: 
A. Tree trimming to be the responsibility of the Owner - Majority of landscape 

trimming has already been accomplished at this point. 
B. Owner will be responsible for disconnecting/re-connecting electrical fixtures 

through the course of this work; Lights/electrical infrastructure on existing 
canopy will need to be removed and there is a security camera mounted on the 
existing stucco wall located on southeast side of the building. 

C. Contractor to follow standard BASF Finestone 1000 Stucco Assembly details. 
Consult BASF Finestone product representatives John Thomas (BASF Product 
Representative) or Lou Willet {Interior Exterior Building Supply Company) with 
any questions. 

2. Demolition Scope of Work: 
a. Remove existing wood canopy infrastructure and dispose of properly. 
b. Remove existing bench seating infrastructure and dispose of properly. Repair 

concrete where holes will be left in concrete walkway from the bench seating 
removal. 

A. Demolition of Gutters/Downspouts - Not included in the 'Demolition Scope of 
Work' . This will be part of the 'Stucco Replacement Scope of Work' . 

3. Stucco Replacement: 
A. Remove existing gutter/downspout infrastructure, dispose of properly. 
B. Remove and dispose of existing metal coping infrastructure. Provide for a long

term 60 mil ice and water barrier (peel and stick) over parapet wall details in 
preparation for roof contractor to then install the new metal coping, approx. 
516 lineal. 

C. Remove existing stucco and sheathing assembly from all exterior stucco vertical 
surfaces, interior side of parapet walls above the shingle roof line and soffit 
sufraces. 

D. Inspect all wood framing members, truss members and wood roof decking. 
Provide unit costs for poor or failed materials: 

i. 2X4 Wood Framing- unit cost to replace with new kiln dried stud grade 



ii. 2X6 Wood Framing - unit cost to replace with new kiln dried stud grade 
iii. 2X6 Wood Framing (parapet nailer) - unit cost to replace with pressure 

treated . 
iv. R-19 faced fiberglass wall insulation - unit cost to replace damaged wall 

insulation (material only, installation labor should be in base proposal) 
v. Poor/Failed Wood Decking (Roof) - provide unit cost to replace 

poor/failed roof decking and add peel and stick underlayment over 
replaced wood decking until shingle contractor can complete that 
portion of the shingle roof repair. 

vi. Truss/Structural members - Time/Material Unit Costing applies 
E. New Stucco System Components for all stucco surfaces including fascia, soffit 

and interior sides of parapet walls above the shingle roof. Contractor to follow 
standard BASF installation and flashing detail requirements. Components not 
limited to the following products : 

i. Sheathing- 5/32" Plywood, PS1-09. 
ii. Air/Moisture/Water Barrier - HydroShell SA; self adhered wall 

underlayment. 
iii. Lath - BASF PermaLath 1000 or Metal Plaster Base 
iv. Stucco - BASF Stucco Base 
v. Top Coat - Tuff Coat Textured 

F. New Stucco Installation : 
i. Install new 5/32" Plywood sheathing throughout (including both sides of 

the parapet wall) . Existing spacing of framing is approx. 24" O.C. Fasten 
to wood framing per BASF and FL Building Code requirements. 
Contractor required to take field photos of the fastening patterns on 
each wall section and submit these to Owner or Owner's representative 
each day. 

ii. Install metal counterflashing/Stucco detail at shingle interface 
iii. Install Brick to Stucco - standard BASF flashing detail (approx. 230 lineal 

feet) . 
iv. Install self-adhered air/moisture/water barrier, HydroShell SA, over new 

wall sheathing, prime sheathing in advance as required by mfg. 
Installation details per mfg. standard details. 

v. Install PermaLath 1000 or galvanized Metal Plaster Base per BASF 
standard installation details. 

vi. Install%" minimum BASF StuccoBase. Achieve a uniform plane in field 
to mask irregularities in existing framing as much as reasonably 
possible. Achieve final textured finish in preparation for elastomeric 
Top Coat finish. 

vii. Install two coats Tuff Coat (textured if needed to achieve Owner 
aesthetic objectives) elastomeric weatherproof coating over entire 
assembly at rate of 170 sq . ft./gal each. 

G. Parapet Details - Install sheathing on both sides of the parapet. Install pressure 
treated wood on the top of the parapet as a top plate (parapet nailer). 

H. Miscellaneous Details: 
i. Brick to Stucco - standard BASF flashing detail (approx. 230 lineal feet) . 

ii. Shingles to Parapet - standard BASF detail 
iii. Metal Flashing detail to 'overlap' new canopy, approx. 85 lineal feet. 



iv. Fiberglass Insulation - reinstall existing fair/good fiberglass insulation 
between wood framing members {24" O.c.) . Replace poor/failed with 
new paper faced R-16 fiberglass insulation or at those locations where 
SPF Foam previously existed. 

v. Miscellaneous Exterior Wall Penetrations; camera, condu it etc. -
Contractor expected to install stucco and corresponding flashing 
materials to accommodate any exterior wall penetrations. The city will 
be responsible for disconnecting and reconnecting this infrastructure as 
that is necessary. 

I. Flash ing to Canopy Detail - a new free standing canopy will be installed as part 
of this project. That is the canopy will not be attached to the building however 
will abut up to the building within in 2". Stucco contractor will need to provide 
a flashing detail to 'kick' the water away from wall and onto canopy where the 
canopy will interface with the perimeter of the facility, approximately 85 lineal 
feet. The specific detail is to be approved by Owner in advance of work. 

J. Stucco contractor to work with metal coping installer (presumably BBG, the roof 
contractor) to prepare 4 locations where coping ends terminate at stucco wall. 
Detail to be approved by Owner in advance. 

K. Following stucco replacement, prepare all surfaces, apply two coats Tuff Coat 
Textured, an emulsified elastomeric weatherproofing coating system, per mfg 
specifications. Color to be approved by owner. 

L. Contractor Submittals to be approved by Owner and Owner's Representative; 
Counterflashing detail interface with shingle roof, stucco to brick flashing 
details, coping interface details, soffit details. 

4. Steel Lentil Replacement (West Side Entranceway) - The existing steel lentil has oxidized 
tremendously which has damaged the brick work and existing stucco details. Contractor 
responsible for replacing the existing steel lentil with a new hot dipped galvanized lentil 
detail and corresponding brick repairs and tuck-pointing. Coat lentil with epoxy coating, 
color selected by Owner. Detail to be approved by Owner in advance. 

5. Miscellaneous Sealants: 
M . Window Sealant Unit Costs: 

a. 'Wet Sealing' Selected Windows - remove existing sealants, 
clean/prepare, install new sealant detail around perimeter of window. 
(total approx. 1,380 lineal feet). Contractor to provide a Lineal Foot Unit 
Cost. 

b. Window Frame to Exterior Sidewalk/Concrete Detail - remove existing 
sealants, clean/prepare, install new sealant detail (install backer rod or 
tape where that will be needed). Total lineal feet approx. 120 lineal feet. 
Contractor to provide a Lineal Foot Unit Cost. 

6. Shingle Repairs and Gutter/Downspout Improvements 
A. Install new gutter/downspout system with new 6"X6" .032 box gutters and 

6"x6" downspouts, kynar finish (color selected by Owner) . Also, provide new 
concrete splash blocks at 8 locations. 

B. Install kick-out flashings in locations at eight (9) locations; where shingles 
terminate at wall and gutter. Kick-out flashings to be .040 aluminum kynar 
finish (color selected by Owner) . 

C. Shingle to parapet wall metal flashing detail at the ridge (or high point of 
shingles), approx. 250 lnft- the metal is oxidizing excessively in isolated areas 



here. The repair scope as follows; prepare surfaces with red oxide primer (rust 
inhibitor), install heavy at rate of 10 LF per 11 oz tube of Garia Flex, a high 
rubber content asphalt sealant. 

D. Shingle and wood deck repair requirements from the installation of the new 
stucco wall assembly: 

i. Shingle Field to Parapet Metal Flashing; to be kynar coated steel. 
Provide unit cost 

ii. Poor/Failed Wood Deck Replacement; Contractor to provide Unit Costs 
iii. Shingle Replacement with like new; Contractor to provide Unit Costs to 

repair damaged shingles with new shingles. Owner understands an 
exact match is impossible, so we will make all efforts to come as close as 
we can in texture and color. 



JACl(SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

[P] 904.247.6268 

[P] 904.247.6276 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

February 7, 2018 

TO: George Forbes, City Manager 

FROM: Ty Edwards, Public Works 

SUBJECT: Award Sand Fencing Construction from 15th Avenue South to the 

St. Johns County Line 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Award Sand Fencing Construction from 15th Avenue South to the St. Johns 

County Line to Lloyd's Construction and Consulting, LLC. and authorize 

Construction Administration Services to Applied Technology & Management, Inc. 

BACKGROUND: 

Recent hurricanes Matthew and Irma have taken their toll on the sand dunes, 
especially south of 15th Avenue South to the St. Johns County Line. The recent 
northeasterly winds have also negatively impacted the sand dunes. In an effort 
to reestablish the dune line, the City proposes to construct approximately 7,500 
linear feet of sand fencing from 15th Avenue South to the St. Johns County Line. 

This project was advertised on January 10, 2018. The City sent invitations to 
three (3) contractors One (1) bid was received on January 31 , 2018 at 2:00 p.m. 

Unit Price Bid 1718-10, 
Sand Fencing Construction 

15th Avenue South to St. Johns County Line 

DESCRIPTION COST RECOMMENDATION 

Total Unit Price Bid (estimated $52,125.00 Award Bid to Lloyd's 
quantities) Construction & Consulting, 
10% Contingency $5,212.50 LLC (the lowest, qualified 

Construction Total $57,337.50 bidder) 

Engr. Construction Admin . $3,100.00 Authorize C&A Services 
(C&A) Services with the project's design 
10% Contingency $310.00 firm, Applied Technology & 

C&A Services Total: $3,410.00 Management, Inc. 

GRAND TOTAL: $60,747.50 

The contract completion time is 30 days from Notice to Proceed. Funding for the 

project will come from General Capital Projects Reserve for Dune Restoration. 



The City's engineer Applied Technology & Management, Inc. recommended 
award to the lowest, qualified bidder Lloyd's Construction & Consulting, LLC. 

1. Award Unit Price Bid 1718-10, "Sand Fencing Construction from 15th Ave. S. 

to St. Johns County Line" to the lowest, qualified bidder, Lloyd's 

Construction & Consulting, LLC, at a cost, based on estimated quantities, of 

$52,125.00 plus a 10% contingency, for a total cost not to exceed 

$57,337.50. 

2. Authorize Construction Administration Services with the project's design 

firm , Applied Technology & Management, Inc., at a fee of $3,100.00, plus a 

10% contingency, for a total fee not to exceed $3,410.00. 

RECOMMENDATON: 

Award Unit Price Bid Number 1718-10, titled "Sand Fencing Construction from 

15th Ave. S. to St. Johns County Line" to the lowest, qualified bidder, Lloyd's 

Construction & Consulting, LLC, and authorize Construction Administration 

Services with the project's design firm , Applied Technology & Management, Inc., 
as described in the memorandum from the Public Works Director dated February 

7, 2018. 





ATMI 
February 6, 2018 

DESIGN 
ENGINEERING 
CONSULTING 

Mr. Martin Martirone, PE 
Department of Public Works 
City of Jacksonville Beach 
1460-A Shetter Ave-2"d Floor 
Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

Re: Sand Fencing Construction (161h Ave. S. to St. Johns County Line) 
Recommendation of Bid Award 
Bid No. 1718-10 

Dear Mr. Martirone: 

On January 31, 2018, one (1) bid was received and opened at 2:00pm for the Sand Fencing Construction 
project. The bid has been reviewed and appears that the bid submittal was complete. In summary, the 
bid was: 

Contractor Total Bid 

Lloyds Construction & Consulting, LLC $52,125.00 

Based on our evaluation of the bid and the previous projects with Lloyds Construction & Consulting, LLC 
and the City of Jacksonville Beach, we recommend the project be awarded to Lloyds Construction & 
Consulting, LLC in the amount of $52,125.00. 

Please let us know if you have any questions or comments concerning this matter. 

Sincerely, 
APPLIED TECHNOLOGY & MANAGEMENT, INC. 

Joe Delacruz, PE 
Associate Engineer 

APPLIED TECHNOLOGY & MANAGEMENT, INC. 
411 PABLO AVENUE • JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FL 32250 • 904.249.8009 





B E A C H E S E N E R G Y 
S £ 11. V 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

C £ S. 

George D. Forbes 
City Manager 

Allen Putnam 
Director of Beaches Energy Services 

January 31 , 2018 

SUBJECT: Electric Tools and Equipment - 12 Months Requirements 

ACTION REQUESTED; 

Approval of Bid No. 1718-04-Electric Tools and Equipment - 12 Months Requirements. 

BACKGROUND; 

The City of Jacksonville Beach solicited bids from three (3) vendors. On December 5, 2017, one (1) bid 
was received for Bid No. 1718-04. This bid covers 6 different items used by Beaches Energy Services for 
maintenance of the overhead and underground electric system. 

The bid met specifications and pricing is as follows: 

Item Description 
Estimated 

Vendor 
Unit 

Total 
Quantity Price 

1 
Chance 2 Ton Hoist Catalog 

3 
Stuart 

$677.38 $2,032.14 
No. 4012 lrby 

2 
Dynatel Pipe/Cable/Fault 

3 
Stuart 

$4,477.64 $13,432.92 
Locator 2573-U 12 Irby 

3 
Service/Cable Tester 

2 
Stuart 

$2,219.57 $4,439.14 
ST800PGN Irby 

4 
Digital Voltage Phase Meter 

2 
Stuart 

$1 , 195.00 $2,390.00 
Catalog No. 6702 lrby 

5 MI 8 Utility Bucket Light Kit 2 
Stuart 

$884.60 $1 ,769.20 
lrbv 

6 
Dual Display Wireless Voltage 

3 
Stuart 

$1 ,369.57 $4, I 08.71 
Indicating Phase DDVIP-40 Irby 



Funds are budgeted in Beaches Energy Services' Operating Supplies and Capital Improvements Accounts. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Award Bid No. 1718-04 for Electric Tools and Equipment- 12 Months Requirements to Stuart Irby. 



JACl(SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6274 

Fax: 904.270.1642 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: George D. Forbes, City Manager 

FROM: Ann Meuse, Human Resources Director 

SUBJECT: Resolution Number 2004-2018, Amending the Classification and 
Pay Plan, Effective February 19, 2018 

DATE: February 7, 2018 

ACTION REQUESTED 
Adopt Resolution Number 2004-2018, amending the Classification and Pay Plan 
for Managerial , Professional , Administrative and Unclassified (Nonunion) 
positions, effective February 19, 2018. This will add a Procurement Associate 
position to the Property and Procurement division and an Assistant Ocean Rescue 
Supervisor in the Ocean Rescue division. 

BACKGROUND 
The City is in the process of implementing a major overhaul of its finance and 
accounting software. A large part of this implementation includes the property and 
procurement function , which impacts all departments in the City. Successful 
implementation of the software will require additional staffing and skill sets that are 
not currently available in the Property and Procurement division. 

The City recommends adding a Procurement Associate position to the Property 
and Procurement division. This will allow the City to recruit the skill set and added 
resources needed to augment the software implementation. It is anticipated that 
there will be attrition in the Property and Procurement division due to retirements. 
When this occurs, it is the City's intent to eliminate a position, which will bring the 
staffing level in the division down to the current level while enabling the City to 
provide the added resources needed during the software implementation. 

Ocean Rescue currently has one full time supervisor, the Ocean Rescue 
Supervisor (Captain) and three part time Lieutenants. Due to the increased visitors 
on the Beach, the City is considering changing one of the part time Lieutenant 
positions to a full time Assistant Ocean Rescue Supervisor (Lieutenant). This 
would allow the City to have a full time Captain or Lieutenant on site to provide 
supervision of the Ocean Rescue operations. 



Memo 
Page 2. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt Resolution Number 2004-2018, amending the Classification and Pay Plan 
for Managerial , Professional, Administrative and Unclassified (Nonunion) 
positions, effective February 19, 2018. This will add a Procurement Associate 
position to the Property and Procurement division and an Assistant Ocean Rescue 

Supervisor to the Ocean Rescue division. 



Introduced by: ___________ _ 

Adopted: _____________ _ 

RESOLUTION NO. 2004-2018 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH POSITION CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN FOR MANA
GERIAL, PROFESSIONAL, ADMINISTRATIVE AND UNCLASSIFIED 
(NON-UNION) POSITIONS, EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 19, 2018. 

WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted a Classification and Pay Plan which establishes 
job classifications and salary ranges for each position that are competitive with similar positions 
in the labor market, and 

WHEREAS, it periodically becomes necessary to update the Classification and Pay Plan 
to ensure positions are properly classified and compensated in accordance with skill levels, job 
duties and supervisory responsibility. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, THAT: 

SECTION 1. The City amends the Classification and Pay Plan for Managerial, Profes
sional, Administrative and Unclassified (Nonunion) Positions attached hereto as Attachment A, 
dated February 19, 2018, which adds a Procurement Associate position and an Assistant Ocean 
Rescue Supervisor position. 

SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to implement the amended pay plan 
and take any action necessary to carry out implementation not in conflict with any other laws or 
ordinances. 

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

AUTHENTICATED this_ day of ____ , 2018. 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Laurie Scott, CITY CLERK 

Resolution No. 2004-2018 Page I of I 



Attachment A 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 

POSITION CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN 

Classification and Pay Plan 

For 

Managerial, Professional, Administrative and Unclassified 
(Nonunion) 

Effective October 1, 2016 
Amended February 6, 2017 

Amended May 1, 2017 
Amended September 18, 2017 
Amended February 19, 2018 



SECTION II 
CLASSIFICATIONS AND PAY GRADES-B 

Department Director * Chief Financial Officer 138 

* Deputy City Manager 141 

* Director of Beaches Energy Services 141 

* Director of Human Resources 135 

* Director of Parks and Recreation 135 

* Director of Planning and Development 135 

* Director of Public Works 138 

* Fire Chief 137 

* Police Chief 138 
Administrative, Fiscal & 
Related * Accountant 126 

* Accounting Supervisor 130 
Administrative Assistant 120 
Assistant City Clerk 121 

* Assistant Customer Service Supervisor 125 

* Assistant Finance/Budget Officer 134 

* Assistant to the City Manager 123 

* Associate Business Analyst 126 
Building Maintenance Supervisor 122 

* Building Official 132 

* Business Analyst 131 

* Business Relations/Conservation Coordinator 122 
Chief Storekeeper 119 

* City Clerk 129 
Clerical Assistant 114 

* Customer Service Supervisor 129 
Database Administrator 126 

* GIS Administrator 130 
Human Resources Generalist 124 

* Information Systems Supervisor 134 

* Internal Auditor 129 

* Network Engineer 130 

* Payroll/Benefits Administrator 130 
Payroll Specialist 120 

* Planning Official 132 
Project/Safety Coordinator 118 

* Property and Procurement Officer 134 

* Procurement Administrator 128 
Procurement Associate 124 
Staff Assistant 117 

* Senior Planner 129 

* System Administrator 129 

* System Administrator/Public Safety 129 

* Utilities Accountant/ Analyst 125 
* Exempt from overtime under the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

Classification and Pay Plan Effective October 1, 2016 
Page 2 



Electric Utilities 

Public Works 

Parks and Recreation 

Public Safety 

CLASSIFICATIONS AND PAY GRADES 

* Construction & Maintenance Supervisor 

Electric Safety & Training Supervisor 

* 
* 
* 

* 

* 

Electric Utilities Superintendent 

Electrical Engineer 

Electrical Engineer (Registered PE) 

Electrical Engineering Supervisor 

Meter Services Supervisor 
* System Operations Supervisor 

* Distribution & Collection Superintendent 
* 

* 

Public Works City Engineer 

Public Works Project Engineer 

* Streets Superintendent 
* Utility Plant Supervisor 

Utility Plant Maintenance Supervisor 
Assistant Ocean Rescue Supervisor 
Beach Patrol Lieutenant 

Beach Patrol Lieutenant 

Director of Golf Instruction 

Events Coordinator 

Golf Cart/Range Attendant 

* Golf Course Superintendent 
* Golf Course/Park Maintenance Superintendent 

* Golf Professional 
Golf Shop Attendant 

Golf Starter 

* 

* 
* 
* 

* 

Ocean Rescue Supervisor 

Recreation Leader 

Recreation Program Assistant 

Recreation Superintendent 

Recreation Supervisor 

Tennis Court Attendant 

Facility Manager 

Fire Captain/Fire Marshall 

Fire Captain/Shift Commander 

Police Accreditation Manager 
Police Commander 

Police Officer Part Time 
Police Records Supervisor 

Police Sergeant (Non-Union) 

Police Volunteer Coordinator 

Public Safety Communications Supervisor 
School Crossing Guard 

*Exempt from overtime under the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

Classification and Pay Plan Effective October 1, 2016 

132 
129 
136 
133 
134 
136 
127 
134 
131 
135 
135 
131 
131 
127 
118 

Unclassified 

Unclassified 

112 
122 
108 
127 
127 
126 
112 

108 
120 
114 

115 
126 
123 
108 

117 
405 
404 
122 
133 
180 
119 

182 
115 

126 
Unclassified 

Page 3 



108 
108 
108 
112 
112 
114 
114 
115 
115 
117 
117 
118 
118 
119 
120 
119 
120 
120 
121 
122 
122 
122 

CLASSIFICATIONS AND PAY GRADES 

* 

* 

Golf Cart/Range Attendant 
Golf Starter 
Tennis Court Attendant 
Golf Shop Attendant 
Director of Golf Instruction 
Clerical Assistant 
Recreation Leader 
Police Volunteer Coordinator 
Recreation Program Assistant 
Staff Assistant 
Facility Manager 
Assistant Ocean Rescue Supervisor 
Project/Safety Coordinator 
Chief Storekeeper 
Ocean Rescue Supervisor 
Police Records Supervisor 
Administrative Assistant 
Payroll Specialist 
Assistant City Clerk 
Building Maintenance Supervisor 
Business Relations/Conservation Coordinator 
Events Coordinator 

122 Police Accreditation Manager 
123 Recreation Supervisor 
123 * Assistant to the City Manager 
124 Human Resources Generalist 
124 Procurement Associate 
125 * Assistant Customer Service Supervisor 
125 * Utilities Accountant/ Analyst 
126 * Accountant 
126 * Associate Business Ana lyst 
126 Database Administrator 
126 * Recreation Superintendent 
126 * Golf Professional 
126 Public Safety Communications Supervisor 
127 * Golf Course Superintendent 
127 * Golf Course/Parks Maintenance Superintendent 
127 * Meter Services Supervisor 
127 Utility Plant Maintenance Supervisor 
128 * Procurement Administrator 
129 * City Clerk 
129 * Customer Service Supervisor 
129 Electric Safety & Training Supervisor 

* Exempt from overtime under the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

Classification and Pay Plan Effective October 1, 2016 
Page 4 



CLASSIFICATIONS AND PAY GRADES 
By Grade 

GRADE POSITION TITLE 

129 
129 
129 
129 
130 
130 
130 
130 
131 
131 
131 
131 
132 
132 
132 
133 
133 
134 
134 
134 
134 
134 
135 
135 
135 
135 
135 
136 
136 
137 
138 
138 
138 
141 
141 
180 
182 
404 
405 

Unclassified 

* Internal Auditor 

* Senior Planner 
* System Administrator 
* System Administrator/Public Safety 

* Accounting Supervisor 

* GIS Administrator 

* 
* 

* 
* 

Network Engineer 
Payroll/Benefits Administrator 

Business Analyst 
Distribution & Collection Superintendent 

* Streets Superintendent 
* 

* 
Utility Plant Supervisor 

Building Official 

* Construction & Maintenance Supervisor 
* Planning Official 

* Electrical Engineer 

* Police Commander 

* Assistant Finance/Budget Officer 
* Electrical Engineer (Registered PE) 
* 

* 
Information Systems Supervisor 
Property and Procurement Officer 

* System Operations Supervisor 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

* 
* 
* 
* 

Director of Human Resources 

Director of Parks and Recreation 
Director of Planning and Development 

Public Works City Engineer 
Public Works Project Engineer 
Electrical Engineering Supervisor 

Electric Utilities Superintendent 

Fire Chief 
Director of Public Works 

* Chief Financial Officer 
* Police Chief 

* 
* 

* 

* 

Deputy City Manager 
Director of Beaches Energy Services 
Police Officer Part Time 
Police Sergeant {Non-Union) 
Fire Captain/Shift Commander 
Fire Captain/Fire Marshall 
Beach Patrol Guard 

Unclassified Beach Patrol Lieutenant 
Unclassified School Crossing Guard 

* Exempt from overtime under the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

Classification and Pay Plan Effective October 1, 2016 
Page 5 



BEACHES IENERGY 
~ V C 

TO: George D. Forbes 
City Manager 

FROM: Allen Putnam 

MEMORANDUM 

Director of Beaches Energy Services 

DATE: February 7, 2018 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2005-2018 - Approving amendments to Florida Municipal 
Power Agency's All-Requirements Project Power Supply Contract 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Adopt Resolution No. 2005-2018 authorizing Florida Municipal Power Agency's All

Requirements Project to assume the power entitlement shares of the City of Vero Beach and 

authorizing the City of Vero Beach to exit the All-Requirements Project. 

BACKGROUND: 

Florida Municipal Power Agency is a wholesale public power agency owned by municipal 

electric utilities. The City of Jacksonville Beach, dba Beaches Energy Services, participates in 

the St. Lucie Project and the All-Requirements Project. Our participation in the All

Requirements Project means that we are contractually obligated to purchase all of our power 

from Florida Municipal Power Agency. 

Under existing contracts, the City of Vero Beach receives fifty-one (51) megawatts (MW) of 

power from three (3) Florida Municipal Power Agency power supply projects: St. Lucie 

Project, Stanton Project and Stanton II Project. The City of Vero Beach's share in the three 

projects is as follows: 

Vero Beach Vero Beach 
Project Fuel Type FMPAShare Share (MW) Share(%) 

St. Lucie Nuclear 87MW 13MW 15% 

Stanton Coal 65MW 21MW 31% 

Stanton II Coal 105MW 17MW 16% 



Memo to George D. Forbes 

Amendments to the All-Requirements Project Contract 

February 7, 2018 2 

The City of Vero Beach wants to sell its electric utility to Florida Power & Light. There are two 

significant barriers to completing the sale. First, the City of Vero Beach's project entitlements 

for power, pursuant to Florida Municipal Power Agency's All-Requirements Project contract, 

cannot be transferred and assigned to an investor-owned util ity because of Internal Revenue 

Service restrictions on assets funded with tax-exempt bonds. Secondly, Florida Municipal 

Power Agency contracts governing the Stanton, Stanton II and St. Lucie projects do not allow 

for a complete sale of the utility. 

The All-Requirements Project is proposing to resolve the first issue by assuming the City of 

Vero Beach 's entitlements for power and corresponding responsibilities. Since the All

Requirements Project is a tax-exempt entity, there is no conflict with Internal Revenue Service 

rules . The All-Requirements Project has two conditions: there can be no increase in cost to 

All-Requirements Project participants and the All-Requirements Project must be compensated 

for the additional risk associated with assuming the entitlement shares. 

To resolve the second issue, all cities participating in the Stanton, Stanton II and St. Lucie 

projects must provide consent allowing the City of Vero Beach to terminate its contracts and 

exit the projects. This will require waivers of certain provisions in each participant's power sales 

and project support contracts. All participants, including the City of Jacksonville Beach, must 

also agree to waive their rights to have similar waivers included in their own contracts. 

The City of Vero Beach will pay to Florida Municipal Power Agency a negotiated amount of 

$108 million . The payment includes $76 million to compensate All-Requirements Project 

participants for assuming the Vero Beach entitlement shares and a $32 million payment to 

offset additional risk assumed by the All-Requirements Project. Florida Municipal Power 

Agency plans to utilize approximately $30 million to mitigate the negative rate impact on All

Requirements Project participants from the additional 51 MW of capacity and approximately 

$78 million to pay down existing All-Requirements Project debt. The closing is tentatively 

scheduled for October 1, 2018. If that date changes, the $108 million payment will be adjusted . 

Florida Municipal Power Agency received two independent evaluations of the transaction. 

Bank of America Merrill Lynch calculated the fair payment for the transaction at $111 million 

and GOS Associates calculated the fair payment for the transaction at $106 million . 



Memo to George D. Forbes 

Amendments to the All-Requirements Project Contract 

February 7, 2018 

The transaction will require: 

3 

• The consent of the fourteen (14) All-Requirements Project participants, some of which 

are also in the three power sales projects 

• The consent of an additional five (5) cities that are in the projects but not in the All

Requirements Project 

• Approval from third party entities including cred it rating agencies, bond trustees, bond 

insurers, bondholders and credit providers 

• Following approval from the nineteen (19) cities, Florida Municipal Power Agency's 

Board must approve the transaction 

• Florida Power & Light must secure regulatory approval from the Florida Public Service 

Commission and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission before closing can occur 

The City of Jacksonville Beach is involved in this transaction because of our participation in 

the All-Requirements Project and the St. Lucie Project. The City of Jacksonville Beach must 

authorize the City of Vero Beach to terminate its contracts with the All-Requirements and St. 

Lucie Projects and authorize the All-Requirements Project to take on the additional power 

supply entitlements. 

This transaction comes with risk to All-Requirements Project participants to include coal 

environmental risks; coal boiler replacement; Stanton life extension ; St. Lucie flood risk; St. 

Lucie steam generator replacement; St. Lucie decommissioning and spent fuel risk; lower gas 

prices; and lower power capacity prices. 

The attached Resolution 2005-2018: 

• Approves the proposed Amendments to the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Contract between Florida Municipal Power Agency and the City of 

Jacksonville Beach to remove the City of Vero Beach from the list of All

Requirements Project participants 

• Consents to the transfer and assignment of the City of Vero Beach's entitlements 

in the Stanton, Stanton II and St. Lucie Power supply projects to the All

Requirements Project 



Memo to George D. Forbes 
Amendments to the All-Requirements Project Contract 

February 7, 2018 4 

• Consents to the waiver of certain requirements of the City of Vero Beach/All

Requirements Project contract, and waives the right of the City of Jacksonville 

Beach to similar waivers of those requirements 

• Provides for mutual waiver and release of the City of Vero Beach from any further 

obligations related to the All-Requirements Project 

• Assigns certain All-Requirements Project contract provisions to a Florida Municipal 

Power Agency Bond Trustee who has rights and obligations to enforce the 

contracts 

• Authorizes the Mayor and City Manager of the City of Jacksonville Beach to 

execute all documents as long as they determine, at their sole discretion, that there 

have been no substantial changes made to the documents 

See Attachment A for a summary of the resolution and the related exhibits. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Resolution No. 2005-2018 authorizing Florida Municipal Power Agency's All

Requirements Project to assume the power entitlement shares of the City of Vero Beach and 

authorizing the City of Vero Beach to exit the All-Requirements Project. 



ATTACHMENT A 

The Resolution for the All-Requirements Power Supply Project has eleven sections, each 
addressing a specific matter: 

1. Section 1 incorporates the Master Annex (Exhibit A) which includes a master set of 
defined terms, recitals (background), and general provisions for the several documents 
(including the resolution) that incorporate the Master Annex. 

2. Section 2 approves the City of Jacksonville Beach's version of Amendment No. 2 to the 
All-Requirements Project Contract, which is Exhibit B. 

3. Section 3 consents to the assignment and transfer of the City of Vero Beach's power 
entitlement shares in the St. Lucie, Stanton, and Stanton II Projects to the All
Requirements Project. 

4. Section 4.01 approves the consent and waiver, which is Exhibit C. This provides the City 
of Jacksonville Beach's consent to the waiver of certain provisions of the City of Vero 
Beach/All-Requirements Project Contract, and the waiver of the City of Jacksonville 
Beach's rights to have the same waivers apply to the City of Jacksonville Beach. 

Section 4.02 consents to the Transfer Agreements between Florida Municipal Power 
Agency and the City of Vero Beach for the transfer and assignment of each of Vero 
Beach's project entitlements. The three separate transfer agreements are Exhibits D-1, D-
2, and D-3. 

5. Section 5 approves the All-Requirements Project Mutual Release Agreement, which is 
Exhibit E, between the City of Jacksonville Beach and the City of Vero Beach. This is a 
full and total discharge of all liability related to the project between the Cities of 
Jacksonville Beach and Vero Beach. 

6. Section 6 consents to the Waiver and Release Agreement, which is Exhibit F, between 
Florida Municipal Power Agency and the City of Vero Beach. This is a full and total 
discharge of all liability between Florida Municipal Power Agency and the City of Vero 
Beach related to the City of Vero Beach's participation in Florida Municipal Power Agency 
projects and its membership in Florida Municipal Power Agency generally. 

7. Section 7 consents to the assignment of certain enforcement rights, which is Exhibits G-
1, G-2, and G-3, to the All-Requirements Project Bond Trustee to enforce the Power Sales 
and Project Support contracts against the St. Lucie, Stanton, and Stanton II Projects. 

8. Section 8 authorizes the City of Jacksonville Beach to provide a certified copy of the 
Resolution to Florida Municipal Power Agency. 



ATIACHMENTA 

9. Section 9 designates the Mayor and City Manager of the City of Jacksonville Beach as 

Authorized Officers and provides them the authority to execute and deliver all documents 

and take all other necessary actions on behalf of the City of Jacksonville Beach. 

10. Section 1 O provides for the authorized officers to take all actions necessary to assist 
Florida Municipal Power Agency in the closing of the Vero Beach transaction, including 

agreeing to amendments to the documents attached as exhibits, in substantial form . 

However, this delegation is limited to amendments that do not constitute a material 
adverse change as determined by the authorized officers at their sole discretion. 

11. Section 11 provides the effective date. 

Exhibits to the Resolution for the All-Requirements Power Supply Project are as follows: 

Exhibit A- Master Annex (in substantial form) 

• Provides for the defined terms, recitals (background), and general provisions for the several 

documents that incorporate the Master Annex, including the resolution 

• This document keeps from repeating defined terms in each document and restating recitals 
dozens of times. 

Exhibit B -All-Requirements Project Contract Amendment No. 2 (in substantial form) 
(SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER) 

• Provides for recitals and definitions 

• Removes the City of Vero Beach from the list of Project Participants 

• Includes the Vero Beach project entitlements in the definition of the All-Requirements 
Project "System" for which the All-Requirements Project has an obligation to collect all 

costs. 

Exhibit C -All-Requirements Project Participant Consent and Waiver (in substantial form) 
(SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER) 
• Provides for recitals and definitions 

• Consents to Amendment No. 2 for all participants 

• Waives the September 30 withdrawal date in section 29 for the City of Vero Beach - instead, 
it will be the date the Vero Beach/Florida Power & Light transaction closes 

• Waives section 27 for the City of Vero Beach (Contingent Liabilities) 
• Consents to Florida Municipal Power Agency releasing and discharging the City of Vero 

Beach from all All-Requirements Project liabilities 
• Consents to the All-Requirements Project taking the transfer and assignment of the Vero 

Beach project entitlements 
• Consents to the bond trustee assignments 
• Consents to other actions Florida Municipal Power Agency may have taken or need to take 

to close the transaction 



ATTACHMENT A 

• Waives the City of Jacksonville Beach 's rights to receive the same exit provisions and 

waivers as the City of Vero Beach is getting. 

Exhibits D-1, D-2, and D-3 - Transfer Agreements (in substantial form) 

• These are the transfer agreements between Florida Municipal Power Agency and the City 

of Vero Beach 

• The All-Requirements Project gets paid $108 million 

• The City of Vero Beach transfers and assigns the All-Requirements Project its project 

entitlements 

• The All-Requirements Project fully assumes the project entitlements 

• The City of Vero Beach gets a full release and discharge from Florida Municipal Power 

Agency 

• There is a separate transfer agreement for each project (Stanton, Stanton II , and St. Lucie) 

Exhibit E -All-Requirements Project Mutual Release Agreement (in substantial form) 

{SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER) 
• The City of Jacksonville Beach releases the City of Vero Beach from all claims that we may 

have as a fellow All-Requirements Project participant 

• The City of Vero Beach releases the City of Jacksonville Beach from all claims that Vero 

Beach may have as a fellow All-Requirements Project participant 

• Does not involve release of non-Florida Municipal Power Agency matters 

Exhibit F - Waiver and Release Agreement (in substantial form) 

• One document for all projects 

• Signed by Florida Municipal Power Agency and the City of Vero Beach 

• Provides for recitals and definitions (some) 

• Complete and total waiver and discharge of all claims by Florida Municipal Power Agency 

against the City of Vero Beach and vice versa 

• Provides the express waivers of contact provisions which would otherwise prohibit the City 

of Vero Beach from selling its electric system to Florida Power & Light 

• Provides general terms 

Exhibits G-1, G-2, and G-3 - Partial Assignment of Rights to Trustees (in substantial form) 

• One for each project (Stanton, Stanton II , and St. Lucie) 

• Provides that the trustee can and must enforce certain terms of the power sales and project 

support contracts for these projects against these projects as the seller 

• Includes the express provisions being assigned 

• Provides for termination if the All-Requirements Project ever ceases to be an assignee of 

the City of Vero Beach 



Introduced by: _________ _ 

Adopted: ___________ _ 

RESOLUTION NO. 2005-2018 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AS A PARTICIPANT OF FLORIDA MUNICIPAL 
POWER AGENCY'S ALL-REQUIREMENTS PROJECT, (I) 
PROVIDING FOR THE INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN 
FINDINGS, DEFINED TERMS, AND GENERAL PROVISIONS; (II) 
APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE ALL-REQUIREMENTS 
POWER SUPPLY PROJECT CONTRACT BETWEEN FLORIDA 
MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY AND THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH; (III) CONSENTING TO THE TRANSFER 
AND ASSIGNMENT OF POWER SUPPLY ENTITLEMENT SHARES 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF VERO BEACH AND FLORIDA 
MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY; (IV) CONSENTING TO THE 
WAIVER OF CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS OF THE ALL
REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT CONTRACT 
BETWEEN FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY AND THE 
CITY OF VERO BEACH, AND WAIVING CERTAIN RIGHTS OF 
THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH TO HA VE SUCH 
WAIVERS FOR THE CITY OF VERO BEACH MADE APPLICABLE 
TO THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH'S ALL
REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT CONTRACT; (V) 
PROVIDING FOR THE MUTUAL RELEASE BY THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND THE CITY OF VERO BEACH, 
FLORIDA, FOR OBLIGATIONS AND CLAIMS RELATED TO 
FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY; (VI) PROVIDING FOR 
THE MUTUAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF THE CITY OF VERO 
BEACH FROM OBLIGATIONS AND CLAIMS RELATED TO THE 
POWER SUPPLY PROJECTS; (VII) PROVIDING FOR THE 
ASSIGNMENT OF CERTAIN RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER 
THE VERO BEACH CONTRACTS TO BE ASSIGNED TO THE 
BOND TRUSTEE FOR THE ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER 
SUPPLY PROJECT FOR THE ENFORCEMENT OF SUCH 
CONTRACTS; (VIII) AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH TO PROVIDE A CERTIFIED COPY OF 
THIS RESOLUTION TO FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY; 
(IX) DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED OFFICERS OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH; (X) TAKING CERTAIN OTHER 
ACTIONS; AND (XI) PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 



BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA THAT: 

SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN FINDINGS, DEFINED 
TERMS, AND GENERAL PROVISIONS. Except as otherwise specifically provided 
herein, the Master Annex, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the 
"Master Annex"), constitutes an integral part of this Resolution, is incorporated by 
reference herein, and has the same force and effect as if set forth in this Resolution; 
provided, that, the Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach, as a participant of 
the All Requirements Power Supply Project, consent, at their sole discretion, to such 
subsequent changes or modifications thereto. 

SECTION 2. APPROVAL OF AMENDMENTS TO THE ALL-
REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT CONTRACT BETWEEN 
FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY AND THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH. Amendment No. 2 to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract, by 
and between Florida Municipal Power Agency and the City of Jacksonville Beach ( the "ARP 
Amendment No. 2"), substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, is approved. 
The Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach are authorized to execute and 
deliver the ARP Amendment No. 2, subject to and with such changes or modifications 
thereto as such Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach may deem necessary 
or desirable, at their sole discretion, prior to the execution thereof, such approval to be 
evidenced conclusively by the execution of such ARP Amendment No. 2 by the Authorized 
Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach. 

SECTION 3. CONSENT TO THE TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF VERO BEACH AND FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER 
AGENCY, WITH RESPECT TO THE ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY 
PROJECT, OF (A) A 32.521% POWER ENTITLEMENT SHARE IN THE 
STANTON PROJECT, (B) A 16.4887% POWER ENTITLEMENT SHARE IN THE 
STANTON II PROJECT AND (C) A 15.202% POWER ENTITLEMENT SHARE IN 
THE ST. LUCIE PROJECT. The Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach 
consent to the transfer and assignment to Florida Municipal Power Agency of (a) the Vero 
Beach Stanton Project Entitlements, (b) the Vero Beach Stanton II Project Entitlements, and 
(c) the Vero Beach St. Lucie Project Entitlements, with respect to the All-Requirements 
Project, as provided for in the Transfer Agreements, including the other instruments, 
agreements, or documents and the overall transaction contemplated thereby, and in 
consideration of the benefits to be received by the All-Requirements Project and the All
Requirements Project Participants, including the City of Jacksonville Beach, subject to the 
satisfaction of all conditions required for the Closing ( as defined in the Transfer Agreements) 
to occur, as set forth in the Transfer Agreements, including as provided in Section 1.10 of 
the Master Annex hereto. 

SECTION 4. CONSENT TO THE WAIVER OF CERTAIN 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE VERO BEACH/ARP CONTRACT, AND, FURTHER, 
THE WAIVER OF CERTAIN RIGHTS TO HAVE SUCH WAIVERS FOR THE 
CITY OF VERO BEACH MADE APPLICABLE TO THE ALL-REQUIREMENTS 



POWER SUPPLY PROJECT CONTRACT BETWEEN FLORIDA MUNICIPAL 
POWER AGENCY AND THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH. 

4.01 The Consent and Waiver (All-Requirements Project), of the City of 
Jacksonville Beach (the "ARP Consent and Waiver"), substantially in the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit C, which, generally, (i) consents to the terms of ARP Amendment No. 2 
between Florida Municipal Power Agency and the City of Vero Beach, Florida; (ii) waives 
certain terms of the Vero Beach/All Requirements Project Contract; (iii) consents to the full 
release of the City of Vero Beach from any and all obligations under the Vero Beach/ ARP 
Contract; and (iv) waives the rights of the City of Jacksonville Beach to have the 
amendments or waivers, or both, in the Vero Beach/ ARP Contract applicable to its original 
All Requirements Project Contract, is approved, such approval to be evidenced conclusively 
by the execution of such ARP Consent and Waiver by the Authorized Officers of the City 
of Jacksonville Beach and Florida Municipal Power Agency. The Authorized Officers are 
authorized to execute and deliver the respective ARP Consent and Waiver, subject to and 
with such changes or modifications thereto, prior to the execution of the ARP Consent and 
Waiver, as such Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach and Florida Municipal 
Power Agency agree are necessary or desirable. 

4.02 The City of Jacksonville Beach: (a) acknowledges that it has received notice 
and a copy of the Vero Beach Waivers; (b) consents to the Vero Beach Waivers; (c) 
acknowledges that the City of Vero Beach owes the City of Jacksonville Beach no obligation 
whatsoever related to the City of Jacksonville Beach's or the City of Vero Beach's 
participation in the All Requirements Project and, as of the Closing (as defined in the 
Transfer Agreements) will owe Florida Municipal Power Agency no obligation whatsoever 
related to the City of Vero Beach's participation in the All Requirements Project; and (d) 
consents to the terms and conditions of the Transfer Agreements, substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibits D-1, D-2, and D-3 ; provided, that, the Authorized Officers of the 
City of Jacksonville Beach consent to such subsequent changes or modifications to such 
Transfer Agreements at their sole discretion. 

SECTION 5. MUTUAL RELEASE BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH AND THE CITY OF VERO BEACH FOR OBLIGATIONS AND CLAIMS 
RELATED TO FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY. The All Requirements 
Project Mutual Release Agreement by and between the City of Jacksonville Beach and the 
City of Vero Beach (the "ARP Mutual Release Agreement"), substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit E, is approved. The Authorized Officers of the City of 
Jacksonville Beach are authorized to execute and deliver the ARP Mutual Release 
Agreement (such approval to be evidenced conclusively by the execution of such ARP 
Mutual Release Agreement by said Authorized Officers) subject to and with such changes 
or modifications thereto, prior to the execution thereof, as such Authorized Officers of the 
City of Jacksonville Beach deem necessary or desirable. 

SECTION 6. MUTUAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF THE CITY OF 
VERO BEACH FROM OBLIGATIONS RELATED TO ITS PARTICIPATION IN 
THE ALL-REQUIREMENTS , STANTON, STANTON II, AND ST. LUCIE 



PROJECTS. The Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach consent to the 
Waiver and Release Agreement, by and between the City of Vero Beach and Florida 
Municipal Power Agency (the "Waiver and Release Agreement"), substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit F; provided, furth er, that the Authorized Officers of the City of 
Jacksonville Beach consent to such subsequent changes or modifications thereto. 

SECTION 7. ASSIGNMENT OF CERTAIN RIGHTS AND 
OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE VERO BEACH CONTRACTS TO THE BOND 
TRUSTEE FOR THE ALL REQUIREMENTS PROJECT TO ENFORCE SUCH 
CONTRACTS. The Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach consent to the 
Assignment to Bond Trustee (All-Requirements Project), between Florida Municipal Power 
Agency and the All Requirements Project Bond Trustee ("ARP Trustee Assignment"), 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibits G-1, G-2, and G-3 , which provide for 
certain rights and obligations of Florida Municipal Power Agency, acting with respect to the 
All Requirements Project, to be assigned to the Trustee, who shall have the right and 
obligation to enforce certain provisions of the Vero Beach Contracts, after transfer and 
assignment of such Vero Beach Contracts to the All Requirements Project, against Florida 
Municipal Power Agency, acting with respect to the Stanton Project, the Stanton II Project, 
and the St. Lucie Project; provided, that, the Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville 
Beach consent to such subsequent changes or modifications thereto at their sole discretion. 

SECTION 8. CERTIFIED COPY PROVISION. The Authorized Officers of 
the City of Jacksonville Beach are authorized to provide a certified copy of this Resolution 
to Florida Municipal Power Agency to provide evidence hereof. 

SECTION 9. DESIGNATION OF AUTHORIZED OFFICERS. The 
Mayor and the City Manager of the City of Jacksonville Beach are each designated as an 
"Authorized Officer" for the purposes of executing and delivering the Waiver and Consent 
and taking all other actions authorized by this Resolution. 

SECTION 10. FURTHER ACTIONS. 

10.01 The Authorized Officers designated hereunder, and the City of Jacksonville 
Beach' s legal counsel are authorized and empowered to take all further actions as the City 
of Jacksonville Beach deems necessary or desirable in carrying out the terms and provisions 
of this Resolution and each of the documents referred to herein, and in effecting the City of 
Jacksonville Beach's coordination with Florida Municipal Power Agency and the 
furtherance of the transfer and assignment to Florida Municipal Power Agency of the Vero 
Beach Stanton Project Entitlements, the Vero Beach Stanton II Project Entitlements, and the 
Vero Beach St. Lucie Project Entitlements with respect to the All Requirements Project; 
provided, however, that for the purposes of approving subsequent changes or modifications 
to the documents or instruments substantially in the form of the Exhibits attached hereto 
each Authorized Officer of the City of Jacksonville Beach may only act on or pursuant to 
the grants of authority under this Resolution if in the exercise of such authority the 
Authorized Officer determines that such subsequent changes or modifications do not present 
a material adverse change from the substantial form of such documents and instruments 



attached hereto; provided, further, that Florida Municipal Power Agency shall not agree to 
subsequent changes or modifications to the documents or instruments substantially in the 
form of the Exhibits attached hereto that constitute a material adverse change. For purposes 
of the foregoing, "material adverse change" means any material adverse change in the 
terms and conditions of a document or instrument to which the City of Jacksonville Beach 
is a signatory, and which imposes on the City of Jacksonville Beach some additional, 
material risk of financial loss, indemnity obligation, covenant, warranty, or restriction of its 
legal rights in a manner that is not already contemplated in the documents substantially in 
the form of the Exhibits attached hereto. 

10.02 The Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach are authorized to 
decline to execute any of the attached exhibits should the Florida Legislature's Office of 
Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability proceed with a study to evaluate 
the feasibility of the dissolution and liquidation of Florida Municipal Power Agency or if 
any other similar or related efforts are launched to politically undermine the standing and 
effectiveness of Florida Municipal Power Agency or the City of Jacksonville Beach, dba 
Beaches Energy Services. 

10.03 If the Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach deem that any 
clause or provision of the Exhibits attached hereto is in conflict with any clause or provision 
of this Resolution, this Resolution shall prevail. 

SECTION 11. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect immediately 
upon its adoption. 

AUTHENTICATED this_ day of ____ , 2018. 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Laurie Scott, CITY CLERK 





























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































BEACHES ! ENERGY 
l V C 

TO: George D. Forbes 
City Manager 

FROM: Allen Putnam 

MEMORANDUM 

Director of Beaches Energy Services 

DATE: February 7, 2018 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2006-2018 - Approving amendments to Florida Municipal 
Power Agency's St. Lucie Project Power Sales and Project Support Contracts 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Adopt Resolution No. 2006-2018 approving amendments to Florida Municipal Power Agency's 

St. Lucie Project Power Sales and Project Support Contracts and authorizing the City of Vero 

Beach to exit the St. Lucie Project. 

BACKGROUND: 

Florida Municipal Power Agency is a wholesale public power agency owned by municipal 

electric utilities. The City of Jacksonville Beach, dba Beaches Energy Services, participates in 

the St. Lucie Project and the All-Requirements Project. Our participation in the All

Requirements Project means that we are contractually obligated to purchase all of our power 

from Florida Municipal Power Agency. Under existing contracts , the City of Vero Beach 

receives fifty-one (51) megawatts (MW) of power from three (3) Florida Municipal Power 

Agency power supply projects: St. Lucie Project, Stanton Project and Stanton II Project. 

The City of Vero Beach wants to sell its electric utility to Florida Power & Light. There are two 

significant barriers to completing the sale. First, the City of Vero Beach's project entitlements 

for power, pursuant to Florida Municipal Power Agency's All-Requirements Project contract, 

cannot be transferred and assigned to an investor-owned utility because of Internal Revenue 

Service restrictions on assets funded with tax-exempt bonds. Secondly, Florida Municipal 

Power Agency contracts governing the Stanton, Stanton II and St. Lucie projects do not allow 

for a complete sale of the utility. 



Memo to George D. Forbes 
Amendments to the St. Lucie Project Contracts 
February 7, 2018 2 

The All-Requirements Project is proposing to resolve the first issue by assuming the City of 

Vero Beach's entitlements for power and corresponding responsibilities. To resolve the second 

issue, all cities participating in the Stanton, Stanton II and St. Lucie projects must provide 

consent allowing the City of Vero Beach to terminate its contracts and exit the projects. The 

City of Jacksonville Beach, as a participant in the St. Lucie Project, must approve certain 

amendments to our power sales and project support contracts. By this resolution, the City of 

Jacksonville Beach is also consenting to waivers of certain provisions in the City of Vero 

Beach/St. Lucie Project contracts and agreeing to waive our rights to have similar waivers 

included in our own contracts. 

The attached Resolution 2006-2018: 

• Consents to the transfer and assignment of the City of Vero Beach's entitlements 

in the St. Lucie Power supply projects to the All-Requirements Project 

• Consents to the waiver of certain requirements of the City of Vero Beach/All

Requirements Project contract, and waives the right of the City of Jacksonville 

Beach to similar waivers of those requirements 

• Provides for mutual waiver and release of the City of Vero Beach from any further 

obligations related to the St. Lucie Project 

• Assigns certain St. Lucie Project contract provisions to a Florida Municipal Power 

Agency Bond Trustee who has rights and obligations to enforce the contracts 

• Authorizes the Mayor and City Manager of the City of Jacksonville Beach to 

execute all documents as long as they determine, at their sole discretion, that there 

have been no substantial changes made to the __ documents 

See Attachment A for a summary of the resolution and the related exhibits. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Resolution No. 2006-2018 authorizing amendments to Florida Municipal Power 

Agency's St. Lucie Project Power Sales and Project Support contracts. These amendments 

will allow the City of Vero Beach to exit the St. Lucie Project. 



ATTACHMENT A 

The Resolution for the St. Lucie Power Supply Project has eleven sections, each addressing 
a specific matter: 

1. Section 1 incorporates the Master Annex (Exhibit A) which includes a master set of 
defined terms, recitals (background), and general provisions for the several documents 
(including the resolution) that incorporate the Master Annex. 

2. Section 2 approves the City of Jacksonville Beach's version of Amendment No. 3 to the 
power sales contract (section 2.01) and project support contract (section 2.02), which are 
Exhibits B-1 and B-2. 

3. Section 3 consents to the assignment and transfer of the City of Vero Beach's power 
entitlement shares in the St. Lucie Project to the All-Requirements Project. 

4. Section 4.01 approves the consent and waiver, which is Exhibit C. This provides the City 
of Jacksonville Beach's consent to the form of amendments to the City of Vero Beach/St. 
Lucie Project Power Sales and Project Support contracts and the waiver of our rights to 
have the same contract amendments apply to the City of Jacksonville Beach. 

Section 4.02 consents to the Transfer Agreement between Florida Municipal Power 
Agency and the City of Vero Beach for the transfer and assignment of each of Vero 
Beach's St. Lucie Project entitlements. The St. Lucie Transfer Agreement is Exhibit D. 

5. Section 5 approves the St. Lucie Project Mutual Release Agreement, which is Exhibit E, 
between the Cities of Jacksonville Beach and Vero Beach. This is a full and total discharge 
of all liability related to the project between the Cities of Jacksonville Beach and Vero 
Beach. 

6. Section 6 consents to the Waiver and Release Agreement, which is Exhibit F, between 
Florida Municipal Power Agency and the City of Vero Beach. This is a full and total 
discharge of all liability between Florida Municipal Power Agency and the City of Vero 
Beach related to Vero Beach's participation in FMPA projects and its membership in 
Florida Municipal Power Agency generally. 

7. Section 7 consents to the assignment of certain enforcement rights, which is Exhibit G, 
to the St. Lucie Bond Trustee to enforce the Power Sales and Project Support contracts 
against the All-Requirements Project, as the new buyer (as assignee and transferee of the 
City of Vero Beach). 

8. Section 8 authorizes the City of Jacksonville Beach to provide a certified copy of the 
Resolution to Florida Municipal Power Agency. 



ATTACHMENT A 

9. Section 9 designates the Mayor and City Manager of the City of Jacksonville Beach as 
Authorized Officers and provides them the authority to execute and deliver all documents 
and take all other necessary actions on behalf of the City of Jacksonville Beach. 

10. Section 1 O provides for the authorized officers to take all actions necessary to assist 
Florida Municipal Power Agency in the closing of the Vero Beach transaction, including 
agreeing to amendments to the documents attached as exhibits, in substantial form. 
However, this delegation is limited to amendments that do not constitute a material 
adverse change as determined by the authorized officers at their sole discretion. 

11. Section 11 provides the effective date. 

Exhibits to the Resolution for the St. Lucie Power Supply Project are as follows: 

Exhibit A - Master Annex (in substantial form) 
• Provides for the defined terms, recitals (background), and general provisions for the 

several documents that incorporate the Master Arinex, including the resolution 
• This document keeps from repeating defined terms in each document and restating 

recitals dozens of times 

Exhibits B-1 and B-2 - Amendments to Power Sales and Project Support Contracts (in 
substantial form) 
(SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER) 

• Limits St. Lucie Project debt to a term no longer than the term of the All-Requirements 
Project Contract 

• Provides for enforcement rights of the St. Lucie Project ( as seller) to be assigned to the 
bond trustee 

• Amends definitions, including as necessary to show the All-Requirements Project as 
an assignee and transferee of the City of Vero Beach 

• Shows the All-Requirements Project as the City of Vero Beach's assignee and 
transferee on the list of project participants 

Exhibit C - St. Lucie Project Participant Consent and Waiver (in substantial form) 
(SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER) 
• Consents to the form of the Power Sales and Project Support Contract amendments 

(allowing the City of Vero Beach to exit) 
• Consents to the assignment and transfer from the City of Vero Beach of its project 

entitlements to the All-Requirements Project 
• Consents to the bond trustee assignments 
• Consents to the overall actions of Florida Municipal Power Agency 
• Waives the City of Jacksonville Beach's rights to receive the same amendments that 

the City of Vero Beach is getting 



ATTACHMENT A 

Exhibit D - Transfer Agreement (in substantial form) 
• This is the transfer agreement between Florida Municipal Power Agency and the City 

of Vero Beach 
• The City of Vero Beach transfers and assigns the All-Requirements Project its project 

entitlements 
• The All-Requirements Project fully assumes the project entitlements 
• The City of Vero Beach gets a full release and discharge from Florida Municipal Power 

Agency 

Exhibit E -All-Requirements Project Mutual Release Agreement (in substantial form) 

(SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER) 
• The City of Jacksonville Beach releases the City of Vero Beach from all claims that we 

may have as a fellow St. Lucie participant 
• The City of Vero Beach releases the City of Jacksonville Beach from all claims that 

Vero Beach may have as a fellow St. Lucie participant 
• Does not involve release of non-Florida Municipal Power Agency matters 

Exhibit F - Waiver and Release Agreement (in substantial form) 

• One document for all projects 
• Signed by Florida Municipal Power Agency and the City of Vero Beach 
• Provides for recitals and definitions (some) 
• Complete and total waiver and discharge of all claims by Florida Municipal Power 

Agency against the City of Vero Beach and vice versa 
• Provides the express waivers of contract provisions which would otherwise prohibit the 

City of Vero Beach from selling its electric system to Florida Power & Light 
• Provides general terms 

Exhibit G - Partial Assignment of Rights to Bond Trustees (in substantial form) 
• Provides that the trustee can and must enforce certain terms of the power sales and 

project support contracts for these projects against these projects as the seller 
• Includes the express provisions being assigned 
• Provides for termination of the partial assignment if the All-Requirements Project ever 

ceases to be an assignee of the City of Vero Beach 



Introduced by: _________ _ 

Adopted: ___________ _ 

RESOLUTION NO. 2006-2018 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AS A PARTICIPANT OF FLORIDA MUNICIPAL 
POWER AGENCY'S ST. LUCIE PROJECT, (I) PROVIDING FOR 
THE INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN FINDINGS, DEFINED 
TERMS, AND GENERAL PROVISIONS; (II) APPROVING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE ST. LUCIE POWER SALES CONTRACT 
AND PROJECT SUPPORT CONTRACT BETWEEN FLORIDA 
MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY AND THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH; (III) CONSENTING TO THE TRANSFER 
AND ASSIGNMENT OF POWER SUPPLY ENTITLEMENT SHARES 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF VERO BEACH AND FLORIDA 
MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY; (IV) CONSENTING TO 
AMENDMENTS OF THE ST. LUCIE POWER SALES CONTRACT 
AND PROJECT SUPPORT CONTRACT BETWEEN FLORIDA 
MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY AND THE CITY OF VERO BEACH, 
AND WAIVING CERTAIN RIGHTS TO HAVE SUCH 
AMENDMENTS INCLUDED IN THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH'S ST. LUCIE POWER SALES CONTRACT AND PROJECT 
SUPPORT CONTRACT; (V) PROVIDING FOR THE MUTUAL 
RELEASE BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH AND THE 
CITY OF VERO BEACH, FLORIDA, FOR OBLIGATIONS AND 
CLAIMS RELATED TO FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY; 
(VI) PROVIDING FOR THE MUTUAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF 
THE CITY OF VERO BEACH FROM OBLIGATIONS RELATED TO 
THE ST. LUCIE PROJECT; (VII) PROVIDING FOR THE 
ASSIGNMENT OF CERTAIN RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER 
THE VERO BEACH ST. LUCIE CONTRACTS TO THE ST. LUCIE 
BOND TRUSTEE TO ENFORCE SUCH CONTRACTS; (VIII) 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH TO 
PROVIDE A CERTIFIED COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION TO 
FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY; (IX) DESIGNATING 
AUTHORIZED OFFICERS OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH; (X) TAKING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS; AND (XI) 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DA TE. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA TUA T: 



SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN FINDINGS, DEFINED 
TERMS, AND GENERAL PROVISIONS. Except as otherwise specifically provided 
herein, the Master Annex, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the 
"Master Annex"), constitutes an integral part of this Resolution, is incorporated by 
reference herein, and has the same force and effect as if set forth in this Resolution; 
provided, that, the Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach, as a participant of 
the St. Lucie Power Supply Project, consent, at their sole discretion, to such subsequent 
changes or modifications thereto. Any capitalized term used herein and not defined herein 
shall have the meaning given to such term in the Master Annex. 

SECTION 2. APPROVAL OF AMENDMENTS TO THE ST. LUCIE 
POWER SALES CONTRACT AND PROJECT SUPPORT CONTRACT BETWEEN 
FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY AND THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH. 

2.01 The terms and conditions of Amendment No. 3 to the St. Lucie Power Sales 
Contract, by and between Florida Municipal Power Agency, with respect to the St. Lucie 
Project, and the City of Jacksonville Beach (the "PSC Amendment"), substantially in the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit B-1 , is approved. The Authorized Officers of the City of 
Jacksonville Beach are authorized to execute and deliver the PSC Amendment, subject to 
and with such changes or modifications thereto as the Authorized Officers of the City of 
Jacksonville Beach may deem necessary or desirable, prior to the execution thereof, such 
approval to be evidenced conclusively by the execution of such PSC Amendment by the 
Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach. 

2.02 The terms and conditions of Amendment No. 3 to the St. Lucie Project Support 
Contract, by and between Florida Municipal Power Agency, with respect to the St. Lucie 
Project, and the City of Jacksonville Beach (the "Support Contract Amendment"), 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B-2, is approved. The Authorized 
Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach are authorized to execute and deliver the Support 
Contract Amendment, subject to and with such changes or modifications thereto as the 
Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach may deem necessary or desirable, 
prior to the execution thereof, such approval to be evidenced conclusively by the execution 
of such Support Contract Amendment by the Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville 
Beach. 

SECTION 3. CONSENT TO THE TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF VERO BEACH AND FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER 
AGENCY, WITH RESPECT TO THE ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY 
PROJECT, OF A 15.202% POWER ENTITLEMENT SHARE IN THE ST. LUCIE 
PROJECT. The Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach consent to the 
transfer and assignment to Florida Municipal Power Agency, with respect to the All
Requirements Project, of the Vero Beach St. Lucie Project Entitlements, as provided for in 
the St. Lucie Transfer Agreement, including the other instruments, agreements, or 
documents and the overall transaction contemplated thereby, and in consideration of the 
benefits to be received by the St. Lucie Project Participants, including the City of 



Jacksonville Beach, subject to the satisfaction of all conditions required for the Closing (as 
defined in the St. Lucie Transfer Agreement) to occur, as set forth in the St. Lucie Transfer 
Agreement, including as provided in Section 1.10 of the Master Annex hereto. 

SECTION 4. CONSENT TO AMENDMENTS OF THE ST. LUCIE POWER 
SALES CONTRACT AND PROJECT SUPPORT CONTRACT BETWEEN 
FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY AND THE CITY OF VERO BEACH, 
AND WAIVER OF CERTAIN RIGHTS TO HAVE SUCH AMENDMENTS FOR 
THE CITY OF VERO BEACH INCLUDED IN THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH'S ST. LUCIE POWER SALES CONTRACT AND PROJECT SUPPORT 
CONTRACT. 

4.01 The Consent and Waiver (St. Lucie Project), of the City of Jacksonville Beach 
(the "St. Lucie Consent and Waiver"), substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
C, pursuant to Section 29( d) of the Power Sales Contract and Section 14(b) of the Project 
Support Contract, (i) consents to certain amendments to the Vero Beach St. Lucie Contracts 
and waives the rights of the City of Jacksonville Beach to have similar amendments made 
to its St. Lucie Power Sales Contract and Project Support Contract, and (ii) consents to the 
full release of the City of Vero Beach from any and all obligations under the Vero Beach St. 
Lucie Contracts, is approved, such approval to be evidenced conclusively by the execution 
of such St. Lucie Consent and Waiver by the Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville 
Beach and Florida Municipal Power Agency. The Authorized Officers are authorized to 
execute and deliver the St. Lucie Consent and Waiver, subject to and with such changes or 
modifications thereto, prior to the execution of the St. Lucie Consent and Waiver, as such 
Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach and Florida Municipal Power Agency 
agree are necessary or desirable. 

4.02 The City of Jacksonville Beach: (a) acknowledges that it has received notice 
and a copy of the Vero Beach St. Lucie Amendments; (b) consents to the terms and 
conditions of the Vero Beach St. Lucie Amendments; and (c) consents to the terms and 
conditions of the St. Lucie Transfer Agreement, substantially in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit D;provided, that, the Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach consent 
to such subsequent changes or modifications to such St. Lucie Transfer Agreement as the 
Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach deem appropriate or necessary. 

SECTION 5. MUTUAL RELEASE BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH AND THE CITY OF VERO BEACH FOR OBLIGATIONS AND CLAIMS 
RELATED TO FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY. The St. Lucie Mutual 
Release Agreement by and between the City of Jacksonville Beach and the City of Vero 
Beach (the "St. Lucie Mutual Release Agreement"), substantially in the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit E, is approved. The Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach 
are authorized to execute and deliver the St. Lucie Mutual Release Agreement (such 
approval to be evidenced conclusively by the execution of such St. Lucie Mutual Release 
Agreement by said Authorized Officers) subject to and with such changes or modifications 
thereto, prior to the execution thereof, as such Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville 
Beach and Florida Municipal Power Agency agree are necessary or desirable. 



SECTION 6. MUTUAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF THE CITY OF 
VERO BEACH FROM OBLIGATIONS RELATED TO THE ST. LUCIE PROJECT. 
The Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach consent to the terms and 
conditions of the Waiver and Release Agreement, by and between the City of Vero Beach 
and Florida Municipal Power Agency (the "Waiver and Release Agreement"), 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit F, which provides for certain waivers 
and releases of the terms and conditions of the St. Lucie Power Sales Contract and Project 
Support Contract, including the full release and discharge of the City of Vero Beach from 
any and all future obligations under the Vero Beach St. Lucie Contracts, on and as of the 
Assignment Effective Date (as defined in the Waiver and Release Agreement); provided, 
furth er, that the Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach consent to such 
subsequent changes or modifications thereto. 

SECTION 7. ASSIGNMENT OF CERTAIN RIGHTS AND 
OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE VERO BEACH ST. LUCIE CONTRACTS TO THE 
ST. LUCIE BOND TRUSTEE TO ENFORCE SUCH CONTRACTS. The Authorized 
Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach consent to the terms and conditions of the St. 
Lucie Trustee Assignment, between Florida Municipal Power Agency, with respect to the 
St. Lucie Project, and the St. Lucie Project Bond Trustee ("St. Lucie Trustee Assignment"), 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G, which provides for certain rights and 
obligations of Florida Municipal Power Agency, acting with respect to the St. Lucie Project, 
to be assigned to the St. Lucie Bond Trustee, who shall have the right and obligation to 
enforce certain provisions of the Vero Beach St. Lucie Contracts, after transfer and 
assignment of such Vero Beach St. Lucie Contracts to the All Requirements Project, against 
Florida Municipal Power Agency, acting with respect to the All Requirements Project; 
provided, that, the Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach consent to such 
subsequent changes or modifications thereto. 

SECTION 8. CERTIFIED COPY PROVISION. The Authorized Officers of 
the City of Jacksonville Beach are authorized to provide a certified copy of this Resolution 
to Florida Municipal Power Agency to provide evidence hereof. 

SECTION 9. DESIGNATION OF AUTHORIZED OFFICERS. The 
Mayor and the City Manager of the City of Jacksonville Beach are each designated as an 
"Authorized Officer" for the purposes of executing and delivering the St. Lucie Consent 
and Waiver and taking all other actions authorized by this Resolution. 

SECTION 10. FURTHER ACTIONS. 

10.01 The Authorized Officers designated hereunder, and the City of Jacksonville 
Beach's legal counsel are authorized and empowered to take all further actions as the City 
of Jacksonville Beach deems necessary or desirable in carrying out the terms and provisions 
of this Resolution and each of the documents referred to herein, and in effecting the City of 
Jacksonville Beach's coordination with Florida Municipal Power Agency and the 
furtherance of the transfer and assignment to Florida Municipal Power Agency of the Vero 
St. Lucie Project Entitlements with respect to the All Requirements Project; provided, 



however, that for the purposes of approving subsequent changes or modifications to the 
documents or instruments substantially in the form of the Exhibits attached hereto each 
Authorized Officer of the City of Jacksonville Beach may only act on or pursuant to the 
grants of authority under this Resolution if in the exercise of such authority the Authorized 
Officer determines that such subsequent changes or modifications do not present a material 
adverse change from the substantial form of such documents and instruments attached 
hereto; provided, furth er, that Florida Municipal Power Agency shall not agree to 
subsequent changes or modifications to the documents or instruments substantially in the 
form of the Exhibits attached hereto that constitute a material adverse change. For purposes 
of the foregoing, "material adverse change" means any material adverse change in the 
terms and conditions of a document or instrument to which the City of Jacksonville Beach 
is a signatory, and which imposes on the City of Jacksonville Beach some additional, 
material risk of financial loss, indemnity obligation, covenant, warranty, or restriction of its 
legal rights in a manner that is not already contemplated in the documents substantially in 
the form of the Exhibits attached hereto. 

10.02 The Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach are authorized to 
decline to execute any of the attached exhibits should the Florida Legislature's Office of 
Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability proceed with a study to evaluate 
the feasibility of the dissolution and liquidation of Florida Municipal Power Agency or if 
any other similar or related efforts are launched to politically undermine the standing and 
effectiveness of Florida Municipal Power Agency or the City of Jacksonville Beach, dba 
Beaches Energy Services. 

10.03 If the Authorized Officers of the City of Jacksonville Beach deem that any 
clause or provision of the Exhibits attached hereto is in conflict with any clause or provision 
of this Resolution, this Resolution shall prevail. 

SECTION 11. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect immediately 
upon its adoption. 

AUTHENTICATED this_ day of ____ , 2018. 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Laurie Scott, CITY CLERK 













































































































































































































































JACl(SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6231 

Fax: 904.247.6107 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

To: George D. Forbes, City Manager 

From: William C. Mann, Planning and Development Director ~./J 
Ordinance No. 2018-8102, amending Planned Unit Dev:o/ment: Re: 
PUD Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2011-8001), as amended, by revising 
the approved Preliminary PUD Development Plan to provide updated 
proposed building footprints for the hospital campus. (Baptist Medical 
Center of the Beaches - Applicant) 

Date: February 8, 2018 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2018-8102, amending Planned Unit Development: PUD 
Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2011-8001), as amended, by revising the approved 
Preliminary PUD Development Plan to provide updated proposed building 
footprints for the hospital campus. 

BACKGROUND: 

The hospital's Planned Unit Development (PUD) Amendment application is an 
anticipated follow-up to the Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment application that 
was approved for the Baptist Medical Center of the Beaches (applicant) on August 
7, 2017, via Ordinance No. 2017-8091 . That amendment increased the allowable 
maximum floor area ratio for "Hospital - Institutional" land uses in the city from 
0.35 to 0.55, to accommodate the anticipated future growth and build-out of the 
hospital campus. With that amendment in place, and based on the hospital campus 
size of approximately 27 .12 acres, the campus could ultimately support just under 
650,000 square feet of hospital, office and ancillary/support space. 

As described in the submitted application narrative and shown on the proposed 
Preliminary PUD Development Plan, the applicant proposes to modify the existing 
PUD ordinance governing the campus as follows: 

1. Convert the proposed five-story parking garage located between Medical 
Office Building B and Medical Office Building C to a new Medical Office 
Building (D), not to exceed 65,000 square feet. 



2. Relocate/redesign the currently approved parking garage to a maximum 
35' height structure to be oriented along Roberts Drive as shown on the 
proposed Preliminary PUD Development Plan, providing a minimum 1 O' 
garage and/or surface parking setback along Roberts Drive. All other 
structures will require a 20' setback. 

3. Provide an additional 27,000 square feet of support and ancillary space to 
the main hospital building. 

4. Provide an addition to the four-story East Pavilion annex of the hospital 
building, adding an additional 50 beds to the hospital's current 136 beds. 
This would increase the maximum bed capacity at the hospital from the 
currently approved 182 beds to 186 beds. 

5. Provide for the expansion of the Central Energy Plant, shown as "CEP 
expansion" on the proposed Preliminary PUD Development Plan. This is 
considered a utilities expansion for development monitoring purposes. 

6. Provide for a maximum building area on Parcel B of 12,000 square feet, 
and on Parcel C (across Roberts Drive) a maximum building area of 60,000 
square feet, with both facilities limited to a maximum 35' height. 

7. Replace the two driveways entering Parcel B (former Jehovah's Witness 
building on 16th Ave S.) with a single driveway access from 16th Ave South 
to the easterly surface parking lot. 

These proposed uses and the addition of a new medical office building D, were the 
driving forces of the applicant seeking their 2017 Comprehensive Plan 
amendment. That amendment was approved by both the City and the state 
reviewing agencies with no objection. The most significant element of the 
proposed development is the replacement of the five-story parking garage 
building with a medical office building, and moving the garage location to the west 
along the Roberts Drive frontage of the campus. 

Staff does not object to the applicant's proposal to convert the approved garage 
structure to an office building. The height of that structure is vested at 55 feet, as 
it was approved as a component of the hospital campus in April of 2004, prior to a 
City Charter Amendment approved by voters in November of 2004. That charter 
amendment enacted a city-wide 35 feet height cap for all new buildings, but 
provided that existing Planned Unit Developments adopted prior to the amendment 
with building heights exceeding 35 feet could be completed. The amendment does 
not regulate the contents or use of vested buildings. 



The relocation of the proposed garage along Roberts Drive is considered a 
preferable location for that facility, in terms of visual impact to adjacent 
noncommercial uses. The western edge of the main campus is bordered by 
hospital facilities and other professional office uses on the west side of Roberts 
Drive, whereas potential other locations for a garage could border established 
single-family neighborhoods along 16th Avenue South or 10th Street South. The 
relocated garage structure would be limited to a maximum 35' height, as it was not 
a component of the April 2004 Planned Unit Development. 

This Planned Unit Development amendment represents a positive long-term 
commitment on the part of the applicant to provide broad-based and high quality 
healthcare to the residents of Jacksonville Beach, and will offer employment 
opportunities from what is already the City's largest employer. Adequate 
infrastructure capacity exists to serve the existing and planned facilities, and any 
new development within the campus over previously approved levels would be 
subject to the City's Mobility fee. 

The Planning Commission met to consider the proposed Planned Unit 
Development amendment on January 8, 2018 and voted unanimously to 
recommend approval of the amendment to the City Council. 

At the February 5, 2018 First Reading/Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 2018-
8102, the City Council voted to amend the ordinance to change reference to a 60-
foot height garage to a 55-foot height garage, on pages 2, 3, and 5 of the PUD 
Modification Narrative dated January 2, 2018, as contained in Exhibit A to the 
ordinance. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Adopt Ordinance No. 2018-8102, as amended, amending Planned Unit 
Development: PUD Ordinance No. 2011-8001, as amended, by revising 
the approved Preliminary PUD Development Plan to provide updated 
proposed building footprints for the hospital campus. 

2. Approve Findings of Fact- Ordinance No 2018-8102, dated February 19, 
2018. 



Introduced by: ________ _ 
1st Reading: _ ________ _ 
2nd Reading: _ ________ _ 

AS AMENDED 
ORDINANCE NO. 2018-8102 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE NUMBER 2011-8001, AS 
AMENDED BY ORDINANCE NO. 2017-8086, 
SUPPLEMENTING THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING 
REGULATIONS AND ZONING ATLAS FOR THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AS PROVIDED 
UNDER CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida, heretofore 
enacted and established a Land Development Code and Zoning Atlas for said City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the rezoning of certain lands in the City from 
Residential, multiple family: RM-1 to Planned Unit Development: PUD on April 19, 2004 via 
Ordinance No. 2004-7873, for the hospital and related facilities of Baptist Medical Center -
Beaches; and 

WHEREAS, Baptist Medical Center of the Beaches, Inc. subsequently acquired 
additional property adjacent to the established hospital PUD and gained approval by the City 
Council for its hospital-related use on August 15, 2005, via Planned Unit Development: PUD 
Ordinance No. 2005-7907; and 

WHEREAS, Baptist Medical Center of the Beaches, Inc. consolidated its three 
Jacksonville Beach properties into a single comprehensive Planned Unit Development: PUD on 
September 6, 2011 , via Planned Unit Development: PUD Ordinance No. 2011-8001 , and also 
amended the approved Preliminary PUD Development Plan, and gained approval of an overall 
site directional and identification signage plan for the consplidated properties; and 

WHEREAS, Baptist Medical Center of the Beaches, Inc. applied for, and received 
approval of, a 2030 Comprehensive Plan text amendment to increase the allowable floor area 
ratio for Hospital - Institutional land uses in anticipation of future growth and development of the 
overall hospital properties; and 

WHEREAS, Baptist Medical Center of the Beaches, Inc. now desires to replace the PUD 
Application Narrative approved via Ordinance No. 2011-8001 and Preliminary PUD 
Development Plan approved via Ordinance No. 2017-8086 to increase the maximum number of 
beds at the hospital, and to describe and show the location of a fourth medical office building, 
relocated parking garage, and expansion of other facilities: and 

Ord. No. 2018-8102 Page 1 of 3 



WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the application, all relevant support 
materials, the staff report, the recommendation of the Planning Commission, and public 
testimony given at the public hearings. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. The City Council has considered the adoption of this ordinance based on 
one or more of the factors listed in Section 34-21 l(c) of the Land Development Code and hereby 
finds that this amendment will not result in an adverse change in the community in which it is 
located. 

SECTION 2. The City Council further finds that the PUD Zoning Amendment 
application dated September 14, 2017 complies with the standards set forth in Section 34-
348(j)(3) of the Land Development Code. 

SECTION 3. That the PUD Zoning Amendment application dated September 14, 2017, 
including parcel ownership documentation, PUD Modification Narrative dated January 2, 2018, 
and revised Preliminary PUD Development Plan dated November 6, 2017, collectively attached 
as Exhibit A to this Ordinance, is hereby adopted and incorporated as part of this amendment to 
the Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code and Atlas, subject to the following additional 
limitations: 

A. A maximum of 186 hospital beds are permitted. 

B. The maximum heights of buildings within the PUD are as follows: 

Hospital, including South and East Pavilion additions- 65 feet 
Medical Office Building C and Proposed Medical Office Building - 55 feet 
All other buildings - 35 feet 

Building height measurement shall be consistent with the provisions of City 
Charter Chapter IX, Section 52(2)b. 

C. Parking - Parking for the hospital shall be required at a ratio of one space per 
hospital bed. Parking for medical, professional and business offices shall be 
required at a ratio of one space per 250 gross square feet of floor area. Surface 
and structured parking provided within the PUD shall also comply with the 
design standards of Land Development Code Section 34-373, and the Parking 
for Disabled Persons standards of Land Development Code Section 34-378. 

D. Landscaping - Landscaping within the PUD shall comply with Land 
Development Code Division 3. Site Clearing and Landscape Standards. 

Ord. No. 2018-8102 Page 2 of3 



E. Signage - Signage within the PUD shall conform to the Master Signage Plan 
approved as Exhibit E to Ordinance No. 2011-8001. Signage not indicated on 
said Exhibit E to Ordinance No. 2011-8001 shall comply with Land 
Development Code Article VIII, Division 4. Sign Standards. 

F. Open Space - A minimum of twenty (20) percent of the gross land in the 
development plan shall be reserved as common and useable open space, 
consistent with Land Development Code Section 34-348(j)(3)h standards. 

SECTION 4. Except as provided herein, all other portions of the Jacksonville Beach 
Land Development Code and Zoning Atlas remain in effect. 

SECTION 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith be and the same 
are, to the extent the same may in conflict, hereby repealed. 

SECTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect upon its adoption and recordation with the 
Clerk of Circuit Court, Duval County, Florida. 

AUTHENTICATED TfflS __ day of ______ , 2018. 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Laurie Scott, CITY CLERK 

Ord. No. 2018-8102 Page 3 of 3 



Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg I of23 

JACKSONVILLE 
8EACJ:1 

REZONING/fEXTAMENDMENT 
APPLICATION 

PCNo. 05 - {'/ 
AS/400# i '7 - l O() Z, Z (o 

This form is intended for use by persons applying for a change in the cext of the Land Development Code or the boundaries of a specific; 
property or group of properties ID!dcr the person or persons control. A rezoning or change tot eh tex1 of the LDC is not intended to relieve 
a particular hardship, nor to confer special privileges or rights on any pmon. but to make necessary adjustments in light of changed con• 
ditions. No rezoning or text amendment to the LDC may be approved except in conformance with lhe Jackson viii,: Beach 2010 Compre
hensive Plan Elemmts. An application fur a rezoning or text amendment to the LDC shall include the infurma!ion and attachments listed 
below, unless lhe requirement fur any particular item is waived by the Planning and D~lopment DirectOI'. All applications shall include 
a $1,000.00 filing fee, as required by City Ordinanc:e. 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Land Owner's Name: Baptisl M,odical C.,.., o1 u-. Badin. Inc.. 8lplol 11ut11 !'!:9P!!!'!!, 1nc. Telephone: 904-627-2900 
M ·t · Addr !iiiiiiii a.-Medical Card:Jmrun-. 1nc. 

at mg ess: -----------------
3563 Phillps Highway Building F Suite 608 Jacksonville, Florida 32207 

Fax=----R-s~e-··;;-1vi--;;.,,'f-Pii-
E-Mail: - - --------"'-

Applicant Name: Baptist Medical Center of the Beaches. Joe, Telephone: ----,--...-,,-----,-.,...,,-
Mailing Address: 3563 Philips Highway Building F Suite 608 fax: ______ .. _r_1_b_ t.._d_1_l_ 
,lacksnoville, Flocida 32202 E·Mail: ------ ----

NOTE: Written authorization from thl! land ownu Is requird if the applkant Is noi1~1HG & DEVELOPMENT 
Agent Name: Paul M, Harden. Esg : Zach Miller. Esq. Telephone: 904.395.5131 

Mailing Address: 501 Riverside Avenue, Suite ao1 Fax: __..9.._04-"--"-399,.,._-""54..,.6'"'1 ______ _ 
.lacksonvifle, Florida 32250 E-Mail: paul harden@bel1south.net 

· zach miller@bellsouth.net 
Please provide the name, address and telephone number for any other land use, envirorunenta~ engineering, archi-
tectura~ economic, or other professional consultants assisting with the application on a separate sheet of paper. 

REzoNING DATA 
Street address of property and/or Real Estate Number: 1meooo10: 179e021000, ,mseocm: 1794510030: 11H0211ao, 1791S0:11:ioo; 111N102 uoo 

1'iii!oli 1:100; 1'1H02 1500; 1ntl!l21600; 17IMI021700 

Legal Description {attach copies of any instruments references, such as but not limited to deeds, plats, casements, 
covenants, and restrictions): ___ S .... ee ... A""'"tt=a=c .... he .. d .... E ... x__.hl .... b=lt __ ·A .... • ____ ____ ___________ _ 

Current Zoning Classification: __._e ..... u ... p....__ ___ _ Future Land Use Map Designation: Institutional 

TEXT AMENDMENT DATA 

Current Chapter, Article, Section. Paragraph Number: ...... N~o::;.:t_Ap=p .. lica=b.:.:le'----------------

REQUESTED INFORMATIO~ A.tt•cbcdl 
Yet No 

I. A copy of the relevant Duval County Property Assessment Map, showing the ex.act location of the land 
proposed fur the amendment, with the boundaries clearly marked; }( 

2. An 8Yz" xi I" vicinity map identifying the property proposed for amendment; X 
3. An aerial photograph, less than twelve (12) months old. of the land proposed for amendment, with the 

boundaries clearly marked; X 
4. For a rezoning, include a narrative description of the proposed amendment to the Zoning Map designation 

and an explanation of why it complies with the standards governing a rezoning the LDC. . X 
IS. For an LDC text amendment, include the current text of the Section(s) proposed to be changed and the full 

text of the proposed amendmcnL The proposed text amendment submittal must include a cover letter con-
X taining a narrative statement explaining the amendment, why it is needed and how it will comply with the 

goals, objectives, and policiesJn the Jacksonville Beach 2010 Comprehensive Plan Elements. 

Applicant Signature: I ~~ W1 LL~~,~ Date: q · /'-l · /1 
" 

. I - ~ ~ 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 11 NORTI-13"" STREET PHONE(904)247--6231 FAX(904)247-6107 



Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 2 of23 

AUTHORIZATIONS 



To Whom It May Concern: 

AGENT AUTHORIZATION 

November 23, 2016 

Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 3 of23 

This letter is to authorize Paul M. Harden, Esq. to sign and act as agent for submittal, 
amendment and approval of applications in connection with a PUD which affects the 
properties with the following real estate numbers: 179756 0000, 179760 001 O; 179451 0030. 

COUNTY OF DUVAL 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER 
OF THE BEACHES, INC., a Florida not-for-

profit Corpo~ . , / 

By: ~f,',A,6 
Name: ___ ~ -.. ~--.;..a.,--[1_. __ t" __ h-._ .. ____ _ 

Title: ___ _..t:.&,=· ..._·=· ---------

!111e fo!rgoin~ was acknowledged before me this ~J!f day of~/' by 
~f} tt w ucrrr,,._., as {;,ft} of 

Baptist Medical Center of the Beac~~-~ o -foforr--pro.fit Corporation on behalf of the 
corporation. He/She is ~sonally kno~ to me or produced . . . 



To Whom It May Concern: 

AGENT AUTHORIZATION 

November 23, 2016 

Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 4 of23 

This letter is to authorize Paul M. Harden, Esq. to sign and act as agent for submittal, 
amendment and approval of applications in connection with a PUD which affects the 
properties with the following real estate numbers: 179602 1000, 179602 1500 fld 179602 1600. 

COUNTY OF DUVAL 
STA TE OF FLORIDA 

( 

BAPTIST BEACHES MEDI 
CONDOMIN OC 

Commission Expires: 9 t,,L/.u :J.-1, :;20:2. o 

Ql
i~.·~. KATHY J BROWN 

i:: :~ MY COMMISSION # FF994791 
•,,, ",,,• EXPIRES July 21, 2020 

l40n:11H1S3 ~°""' 



To Whom It May Concern: 

AGENT AUTHORIZATION 
November 23, 2016 

Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 5 of23 

This letter is to authorize Paul M. Harden, Esq. to sign and act as agent for submittal, 
amendment and approval of applications in connection with a PUD which affects the 
properties with the following real estate numbers: 179602 1700, 179602 1400; 179602 1300; 
179602 1200 and 179602 1100. • 

c., 

Name: 

Title: V,· tl. Pt, tJIJ tit. _..;.._ ___________ _ 
COUNTY OF DUVAL 
STATE OF FLORIDA 



Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 6 of23 

REVISED PUD NARRATIVE 



Ownen: 

POD MODIFICATION NARRATIVE 

January 2, 2018 

Baptist Medical Center of the Beaches, Inc. 
3563 Philips Highway Building F Suite 608 
Jacksonville, Florida 32207 

Baptist Health Properties, Inc. 
3563 Philips Highway Building F Suite 608 
Jacksonville, Florida 32207 

Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 7 of23 

Baptist Beaches Medical Condominium Association, Inc. 
3563 Philips Highway Building F Suite 608 
Jacksonville, Florida 32207 

Agent: Paul M. Harden, Esq. 
501 Riverside Avenue, Suite 901 
Jacksonville, Florida 32250 

Applicant: Baptist Medical Center of the Beaches, Inc. 
3563 Philips Highway Building F Suite 608 
Jacksonville, Florida 32207 

Project Name: Baptist Beaches Hospital 

Parcel(s) Size: Approximately 27.12 acres 

Project location: 1350 13th Avenue South, Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 
1127 1 ~ A venue South, Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 
1370 13th Avenue South, Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 
1320 Roberts Drive, Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 
1577 Roberts Drive, Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 
1375 Roberts Drive, Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

See Attached Property Assessment Map and Vicinity Map 

Legal Description: See Attached Deeds and Legal Descriptions 

Existing Zoning: PUD Ordinance 2017-8086, with development rights vested pursuant to 
PUD Ordinance 2011-8001, PUD Ordinance 2005-7907 and PUD 
Ordinance 2004-7873 

1 
Baptist Beaches Hoa,itaJ PUD 

2017 Modification 



Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 

Pg 8 of 23 

Future Land Use: Institutional 

Preliminary PUD . 
Development Plan: See attached Preliminary PUD Development Plan. 

Signage Plan: 

Request: 

Please refer to Sign.age Plan attached to previous PUD as Exhibit "E." 

The owners are requesting to modify the existing PUD by replacing the 
Preliminary PUD Development Plan attached as Exhibit "D" to Ordinance 
2017-8086 with the revised Preliminary PUD Development Plan 
(''Preliminary Development Plan") attached to tb.i,s application as Exhibit 
"D." The owners are further requesting amendment to the PUD narrative 
as written herein. · · 

Nothing contained herein shall diminish or reduce any uses or buildings 
currently in use as of the date this PUD is approved nor shall anything 
contained herein diminish or reduce any unused development rights or 
buildings nor the scope of said unused development rights or buildings 
allotted pursuant to Ordinances 2017-8086, 2011-8001, 2005-7907 and 
2004-7873. 

Ordinance 2004-7873, as amended by Ordinance 2005-8907, 2011-8005, 
and 2017-8086 entitles Parcel A to the following uses: 

• 62,000 square feet of medical, business and professional offices 
(Medical Office Buildings "A" and "B" on the original site plan.) 
Currently 48,993 square feet of these development rights are used. 
13,007 square feet of unused entitlements. -

• 182 hospital beds with ancillary uses, including medical and 
business offices. Currently 136 hospital beds are used on the 
property. 

• 60,000 square feet of medical, · business and professional offices 
serving affiliated/community physicians and professionals 
(Medical Office Building "C"). Currently 48,344 square feet of 
these development rights are used. 11,666 square feet of unused 
entitlements. 

• A 55-:foot tall, five-story parking garage located between Medical 
Office Building "C" and Medical Office Building "B." Currently 
these development rights are unused on the property. 

2 
Baptist Beaches Hospital PUD 

2017 Modification 



Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8 102 
Pg 9 of23 

• 63,000 square feet of non-ancillary medical, business and 
professional offices. Currently these development rights are unused 
on the property. 

The existing uses include support functions along with ancillary and 
auxiliary services reasonably needed to serve patients and/or office 
tenants, as applicable, including but not limited to, the pharmacy, kitchen, 
cafeteria and gift shop. This PUD Modification does not extinguish these 
entitlements. 

The modifications proposed herein will allow the following proposed 
additions on Parcel A: 

• A medical office building containing up to 65,000 square feet of 
non-ancillary medical, business and/or professional offices serving 
affiliated/community physicians and professionals. The new 
building, as shown on the Preliminary Development Plan, will be 
in the general location of the approved fifty-five (55) foot tall park
ing garage. ("Medical Office Building D") 

• An addition to the main building containing 7,000 square feet of 
imaging services and additional hospital and ancillary/non
ancillary uses ("East Pavilion Imaging Addition"). 

• An addition to the main building containing 10,000 square feet of 
support services and additional hospital and ancillary/non-ancillary 
uses. ("Support Services Addition l "). 

• An addition to the main building containing 10,000 square feet of , 
support services and additional hospital and ancillary/non-ancillary 
uses. ("Support Services Addition 2"). 

e CEP expansion. 

• An addition to the four-story East Pavilion. The addition shall 
contain up to additional 50 hospital beds, additional hospital and 
~cillary/non-ancillary uses and shall be the same height as the 
East Pavilion. · 

• Oi;ie P?Tking garage. Parapets and walls may be placed on top deck 
and the garage may contain storage and support services ancillary 
to normal garage operations. 

3 

Baptist Beaches Hospital PUD 
2017 Modification 



Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg I0of23 

• New access point on Roberts Drive and new access point on l (i1h 
Avenue South which shall replace the current entrance to Parcel B. 

The additions listed above may include support functions along with 
ancillary and auxiliary services reasonably needed to serve patients and/or 
office tenants, as applicable, including but not limited to, expansion or 
relocation of the, CEP uses, pharmacy, kitchen, cafeteria and gift shop. 
Such uses shall be contained within the building footprints as shown on 
the preliminary development plan. Any portion of the unused development 
rights may be used in any of the additions provided herein. 

The modifications proposed herein will allow the following with respect to 
Parcels B and C: 

• Parcels B and C shall be allowed all uses permitted for Parcel A 
and the uses permitted in Ordinances 2005-7907 and 2011-8001, 
respectively. Parcel B shall have a maximum gross building area 
of 12,000 square feet and Parcel C shall have a maximum gross 
building area of 60,000 square feet. Structures on Parcels B and C 
may be removed and the parcels may also be used to meet the 
parking demands and emergency access necessary for all three 
parcels. 

To the extent any restrictions, terms or conditions for the property subject 
to this written description or in the attached Preliminary Development 
Plan conflict with the provisions of Ordinances 2004-7873, 2005-7907, 
2011-8001 and 2017-8086 this written description and Preliminary 
Development Plan shall control, so long as it does not limit entitlements 
contained in Ordinances 2004-7873, 2005-7907, 2011-8001 and 2017-
8086. 

The attached modified Preliminary PUD Development Plan, to be 
approved, depicts: 

• The conceptual location of Medical Office Building D. 

• The conceptual location of parking garage. 

• The conceptual location of: new parking, including potential 
surface parking on Parcels B and C; internal driveway design; and 
curb cuts needed to accommodate the additions and improve 
access to the hospital. 

• The conceptual additions to existing buildings and new entrances. 

4 
Baptist Beaches Hospital PUD 

2017 Modification 



Setbacks: 

Height: 

Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 11 of 23 

The attached Preliminary PUD Development Plan is conceptual. The final 
location and configuration of proposed buildings and additions shown on 
the Preliminary PUD Development Plan and described herein may be 
adjusted prior to final permit. Any changes to the preliminary 
development plan shall not exceed the standards set forth in Section 34-
348(m), Land Development Code. 

Additions to Parcel A will comply with the following setbacks: 

• Front: 20 feet (13th Avenue South and lti111 Avenue South) 

• Rear:None 

• Side: 20 feet Roberts Drive and 10th Street 

• Comer: None 

• Parking garage or other vehicular use areas: 10 feet from any 
property lip.e. 

• Accessory Structures: None 

Parcel B: 

Parcel C: 

As provided in Ordinance 2005-7907, no setbacks are 
required. However, to the extent Parcel B is used for 
parking for Parcel A, a minimum 20 foot setback shall be· 
provided from the property line to 1 (jfh A venue South. 

As provided in Ordinance 2011-8001, no setbacks are 
required. 

Medical office building "D" shall not exceed fifty-five (55) feet in height. 

The buildings on Parcels B and C shall not exceed thirty-five (35) feet in 
height. 

Additions to the ''East Pavilion" shall not exceed sixty-five (65) feet. 

Additions to the main building shall not exceed sixty-five (65) feet. 

Building height excludes spires, belfries, cupolas, flagpoles, antennas, 
water tanks, fire towers, cooling towers, ventilators, chimneys, radio and 
television towers, elevator hoistways, decorative architectural features, 
parapets, safety equipment, HV AC equipment and other structures and 
appurtenances not intended for human occupancy pursuant to "Height 

5 
Baptist Beaches Hospital PUD 

201 7 Modification 



Maximum 
Impervious 
Surface 
Coverage: 

Utilities: 

Access: 

Parking: 

Public Facilities: 

Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 12 of23 

Limit Exemptions" allowed under the land development code or currently 
in use on the property. 

85% 

All new utilities serving the site will be installed underground. 

Access shall be provided to the site as shown on the attached PreHminary 
Development Plan. 

One par.king space shall be provided for every 250 square feet of medical 
office, business and professional offices. One parking space shall be 
provided for every hospital bed. Parking may be located in the multi-level 
parking garage shown on the PreHminary Development Plan. Adequate 
parking pursuant to these parameters shall be provided on-site. 

Parcel A: 

• The East Pavilion Imaging Services Addition and Support Service 
Additions I and 2) will not increase demand for parking as they do 
not increase staff or patient use of the hospital. 

• Surface parking on Parcels B and C may be used to accommodate 
the parking needs for Parcel A. 

Parcel B 

• Parking needs for Parcel B may be accommodated through surface 
parking on Parcels A or C or by spaces in the parking garage. 

Parcel C 

• Parking needs for Parcel C may be accommodated through surface 
parking on Parcels A or B or by spaces in the parking garage. 

Water mains adjacent to the site are adequate for the proposed 
development The existing storm water systems are adequate for the 

6 
Baptist Beaches Hospital PUD 

2017 Modification 



Landscaping/ 
Buffers: 

Phasing: 

Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 13 of23 

proposed development Sanitary sewers adjacent to the site are adequate 
for the proposed development 

The current development rights are vested with respect to all applicable 
concurrency matters. As to the additional development rights proposed 
pursuant to this PUD, there is adequate sewer, water, solid waste, storm 
water and other public facilities to meet concurrency requirements. 

With respect to transportation and roads, Parcel A is vested to serve 182 
hospital beds and 185,000 square feet of non-ancillary medical. business 
and professional office space. Parcel B is vested to serve 12,000 square 
feet of non-ancillary medical business and professional office space. 
Parcel C is vested to serve 28,000 square feet of non-ancillary medical 
business and professional office space. Sufficient capacity currently exists 
to serve the proposed additions to the main building described herein and 
the attached PreHminary Development Plan. 

A minimum of twenty (20) percent of gross land area of the site will be 
used as open space. lbis may consist of pervious and impervious areas, 
stormwater facilities and other on-site bodies of water. 

Landscaping with suitable and appropriate vegetation shall be provided as 
generally shown in the Preliminary Development Plan. Alterations of 
landscaping shall be subject to approval by the Planning Department 
Director, however, such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
Landscaping shall be permitted within the required setbacks. Landscaping 
shall be provided on the southern border of the property in order to 
sufficiently buffer the hospital and related uses from the area residents. 

Phasing will occur as dictated by community needs. 

7 
Baptist Beaches Homital PUD 

2017 Modification 



Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018~8102 
Pg 14 of23 

REVISED SITE PLAN 



u 

I 

' , 
• I 

1· ! J C"~~l 
I ~ - · 

II • \.~• 
I ii/ ::::- ..-~ 

1.., 

' I 
I i I 
I ·1 

' ' . 
i I 

\ 
•· 

,., 

H 

Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 

--- 15of23 

\ 
I 

I, 11D . ''I . /' t' ~ .. .. = ~ I 
i 
1..- - I 

2 
i 
i r 

( __....JL __ _ .' 1j 

0 · ·O · .O 
G , ll , 0 

\_ 
-_-:_ __ ....... ,.,- -135-., 



Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 16 of23 

DIVISION OF PROPERTY 
OWNERSHIP 



I ' • . 
'• 

I 

I 

Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 17 of23 



VICINITY MAP 

Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 18 of23 





Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 20 of23 

CURRENT SITE PLAN 



ExhibitA o ' rd. No. 2018-8102 
... _____ .....__,_..,._ Pg 21 of23 ~ \---·· 



AERIAL OF THE 
PROPERTY 

Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2018-8102 
Pg 22 of23 



[1] 

>< 
::r .... 
O" .... 
rr 

0 
l"1 
a, 

z 
'tJ 0 
l!l • 

N r.., 
WO 
0 .... 
HI er Ne 
WO 

N 



SUBJECT: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
Ordinance No. 2018-8102 

February 19, 2018 

Ordinance No. 2018-8102, amending Planned Unit Development: PUD Or
dinance No. 2011-8001, as amended, by revising the approved Preliminary 
PUD Development Plan to provide updated proposed building footprints for 
the hospital campus. 

Pursuant to Article VI, Section 34-21 l(c) of the Land Development Code of the Jacksonville Beach Code 
of Ordinances, the City Council shall consider the adoption of an ordinance enacting an amendment to the 
Zoning Atlas or Code based on only one (1) or more of the following factors, provided however, that in 
no event shall an amendment be approved which will result in an adverse community change in which the 
proposed development is located. 

(1) Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the comprehensive plan; 

(2) Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of the LDC; 

(3) Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is consistent with 
existing and proposed land uses; 

(4) Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that require an 
amendment; 

(5) Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in 
demands on public facilities, and whether and the extent to which the proposed 
amendment would exceed the level of service standards established for public 
facilities in the comprehensive plan; 

(6) Whether, and the extent to which, zoning district boundaries are not properly 
drawn on the official zoning atlas; 

(7) Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in 
significantly adverse impacts on the natural environment, including, but not 
limited to, water, air, stormwater management, wildlife, vegetation, wetlands, 
and the natural functioning of the coastal environment; 

(8) Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would adversely affect 
the property values in the area; 

(9) Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a 
logical and orderly development pattern; 

(10) Whether it is impossible to find other lands in the city for the proposed use in a 
zoning district that permits such use as of right. 

- 1 -



Based on a review of the rezoning application, staff analysis of the information submitted, and the public 
hearings on the proposed PUD development plan amendment conducted on February 5, ~018 and Febru
ary 19, 2018, the City Council has found that the applicant has fulfilled his or her burden to show that the 
proposed PUD amendment should be approved as follows: 

1. There are adequate public facilities available to serve the existing and proposed uses of the subject 
property. 

2. Adjacent properties should not be negatively impacted by the proposed PUD improvements, includ
ing the conversion of the approved 55 ' height parking garage into a new medical office building and 
by proposing a future 35' height parking garage oriented along Roberts Drive. On-site parking and 
open space provision within the subject property will remain compliant with minimum Land Devel
opment Code standards. 

3. The existing and proposed uses of the subject property for hospital facilities are consistent with the 
Institutional Future Land Use designation of the property in the 2030 Comprehensive Plan. 

4. The proposed PUD amendment was reviewed by staff and unanimously recommended for approval 
by the Jacksonville Beach Planning Commisslon, prior to its consideration by the City Council. 

5. Future development of the hospital campus, as described in Ordinance No. 2018-8102, and as shown 
on the revised site plan included in Exhibit A to that ordinance, constitutes orderly and functional 
development of the subject property. 

- 2 -



JACl{SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone. 904.247.6231 

Fax 904 247 6107 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 

Re: 

George D. Forbes, City Manager 

William C. Mann, Planning and Development Director 

Ordinance No. 2018-8103, amending the text of the Land 
Development Code Section 34-347, to reference Article VI, Division 3, 
"Zoning Atlas and Code Amendments" regulations as being applicable 
standards for processing Redevelopment District: RD rezoning 
applications. 

Date: January 22, 2018 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2018-8103, amending the text of the Land Development 
Code Section 34-347, to reference Article VI, Division 3, "Zoning Atlas and Code 
Amendments" regulations as being applicable standards for processing 
Redevelopment District: RD rezoning applications. 

BACKGROUND: 

Staff has completed a review with the City Attorney of the recently issued judicial 
order overturning a prior judicial decision that upheld the City Council's denial of 
the then proposed Surfer the Bar Redevelopment District: RD rezoning application 
for the Mango's Bar property on the northwest corner of 1st Street and 1st Avenue 
North. One of the key points made by the prevailing judges in that order was that 
the City Council erred when it based its decision on the rezoning standards found 
in Land Development Code (LDC) Section 34-211(c). Two of the three appellate 
judges concluded that the City Council should have based any decision that they 
made on the application solely on the standards contained in Land Development 
Code Section 34-347 addressing Redevelopment District: RD districts (Sec 34-
347). The lower court judge and the third appellate judge concluded that the City 
Council correctly applied the standards found in Section 34-211. 

Section 34-211 is contained in Land Development Code Article VI, Division 3-
Zoning Atlas and Code Amendments. That division deals with the review and 
approval of ALL land development code text changes and amendments to the 
official zoning atlas/map for the City (rezonings). It has historically and consistently 
been the interpretation of staff that because a request for RD zoning designation 



is at its core a rezoning request, changing the zoning designation from a parcel's 
current zoning designation (CBD, C-1, etc. to Redevelopment District: RD), it 
should be reviewed and approved or denied based on the same standards as are 
all other rezoning requests. 

Accordingly, consistent with its prior interpretation of its code, staff proposes to 
amend the Section 34-347 Redevelopment District: RD district zoning regulations 
to specifically reference and incorporate Article VI , Division 3- Zoning Atlas And 
Code Amendments procedures and standards into the process for reviewing and 
approving/denying Redevelopment District: RD zoning designation requests. The 
proposed changes to Land Development Code Section 34-347, incorporating 
reference to Article VI, Division 3, including Section 334-211 (c) specifically, is 
included for your reference. Proposed revisions are presented in the Ordinance in 
underline addition/strike through deletion format. 

The Planning Commission met to consider the proposed Land Development Code 
text amendment on January 8, 2018 and voted to recommend approval of the 
amendment to the City Council. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2018-8103, amending the text of the Land Development 
Code Section 34-347, to reference Article VI, Division 3, "Zoning Atlas and Code 
Amendments" regulations as being applicable standards for processing 
Redevelopment District: RD rezoning applications. 



Introduced by: ________ _ 
1st Reading: _________ _ 
2nd Reading: _________ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-8103 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND 
ESTABLISIDNG A COMPREHENSIVE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATION AND OFFICIAL ZONING MAP FOR THE 
INCORPORATED AREA OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 163.3202, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, BY AMENDING ARTICLE VII, DIVISION 2. SECTION 34-
347. REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: RD TO AFFIRM AND STATE THAT 
ARTICLE VI, DIVISION 3. ZONING ATLAS AND TEXT AMENDMENTS 
REGULATIONS ARE APPLICABLE TO THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL 
OF APPLICATIONS FOR REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: RD ZONING 
DESIGNATION, AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE: 

WHEREAS, the City of Jacksonville Beach has the authority to adopt this Ordinance pursuant to 
Article VIII of the Constitution of the State of Florida; Chapters 163 & 166, Florida Statutes; and 
Section 381.986, Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, Land Development Code Article VI. Division 3. Zoning Atlas and Code 
Amendments is intended to provide a means for changing the boundaries of the official zoning 
atlas; and 

WHEREAS, an application to change the zoning designation of a parcel of land located in the 
Downtown Community Redevelopment District portion of the City of Jacksonville Beach from its 
present zoning designation to that of Redevelopment District: RD should be reviewed and 
approved or denied based on the standards and procedures applicable to all applications to change 
the boundaries of the official zoning atlas, and 

WHEREAS, the Jacksonville Beach Planning Commission, after notice and public hearing, has 
considered the ordinance and has presented its recommendation to the City Council; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA: 

Ordinance No. 2018-8103 Page 1 of 12 



SECTION 1. That Article VII, Division 2, Section 34-347 Redevelopment District: RD of 
the Land Development Code is hereby amended to incorporate reference to Article VI. Division 
3. Zoning Atlas and Code Amendments regulations as follows 1: 

Sec. 34-347. Redevelopment district: RD. 

(a) Purpose and intent. The RD zoning district classification is designed to achieve a 
diversity of uses in a desirable environment through the application of flexible land development 
standards and to foster creative design and planning practices in the Jacksonville Beach 
Downtown Redevelopment Area in order to encourage economic vitality and redevelopment 
pursuant to the objectives of the Jacksonville Beach Community Redevelopment Plan. 

(b) RD zoning district boundaries .. 

(1) General. The RD zoning district boundaries include all lands lying in and 
bounded by the mean low water mark of the Atlantic Ocean and the centerline of 
the following streets: Thirteenth Avenue South, Third Street (State Route A-1-A), 
and Ninth Avenue North. 

(2) Subdistricts. The boundaries of the RD zoning district may be further described 
by the following subdistricts: 

(c) 

(1) 

a. Downtown subdistrict: That portion of the RD zoning district lying in and 
bounded by the mean low water mark of the Atlantic Ocean and the 
centerline of the following streets: First A venue South, Third Street (State 
Route AlA), and Fifth A venue North. 

b. North subdistrict: That portion of the RD zoning district lying in and 
bounded by the mean low water mark of the Atlantic Ocean and the 
centerline of the following streets: Fifth Avenue North, Third Street (State 
Route AlA), and Ninth A venue North. 

c. South subdistrict: That portion of the RD zoning district lying in and 
bounded by the mean low water mark of the Atlantic Ocean and the 
centerline of the following streets: Thirteenth A venue South, Third Street 
(State Route AlA), and First A venue South. 

Procedure. 

General overview. ip;ior to receipt of an RD zoning district classification Land 
that is not zoned RD but seeks to be rezoned to Redevelopment District: RD must 
com[?!y with Article VI, Division 3 standards and must also receive approval of a 
preliminary development plan pursuant to the procedures and standards of this 

1 (strikethrot:1gh text indicates deletions, underline text indicates additions). 
Ordinance No. 2018-8103 Page 2 of 12 



section. The preliminary development plan for an RD zoning district classification 
must then receive approval of a development plan pursuant to the procedures and 
standards of section 34-251 et seq. 

(2) Preapplication conference. 

a. Submission of application. Before submitting an application !for rezoning 
and a preliminary development plan for ffil RD zoning district 
classification, an applicant shall request in writing a preapplication 
conference with the planning and development director. Accompanying 
the request for a preapplication conference shall be an application in the 
form established by the planning and development director and made 
available to the public, and a nonrefundable application fee which is 
established from time to time by the city council to defray the actual cost 
of the preapplication conference. 

b. Scheduling of preapplication conference. Within ten (10) working days 
after the planning and development director determines that the 
application is sufficient, a preapplication conference shall be scheduled 
with the applicant, representatives of the Jacksonville Beach Community 
Redevelopment Agency, such other city departments and, state or federal 
agencies that may be involved in the review and processing of the 
application. The applicant shall be notified in advance by the planning and 
development director about which other city departments, state and federal 
agencies will be involved in the preapplication conference and the time, 
date and place of the conference. 

c. Preapplication conference issues. At the preapplication conference, the 
planning and development director, the applicant, representatives of the 
Jacksonville Beach Community Redevelopment Agency, and the 
representatives from other city departments, state and federal state 
agencies shall discuss the proposed development and the following issues 
as they relate to the application for an RD zoning district designation: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Ordinance No. 2018-8103 

The existing characteristics of the site proposed for development or 
redevelopment including but not limited to existing built land uses, 
vacant areas, land ownership and existing densities; 

The relationship between the proposed development, existing land 
uses, and surrounding land uses; 

The status of existing and proposed on-site streets, utilities or other 
public and private facilities to serve the proposed development; 
and 

The status of public facilities that would serve the proposed 

Page 3 of 12 



development, specifically as it relates to the CIE of the 
comprehensive plan; 

d. Written summary. Within ten (10) working days of the preapplication 
conference, the planning and development director shall provide the 
applicant with a written summary of the preapplication conference. One 
( 1) copy of this written summary shall be submitted by the applicant to the 
planning and development director at the time of submission of the 
application for development permit. 

(3) Preliminary development plan for an RD zoning district. 

a. Submission of application. Subsequent to Following the preapplication 
conference, an application for rezoning and a preliminary development 
plan for a RD zoning district classification shall be submitted to the 
planning and development director, along with a nonrefundable 
application fee which is established from time to time by the city council 
to defray the actual cost of processing the application. 

b. Contents of application. The rezoning and preliminary development plan 
application shall include the following information: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Ordinance No. 2018-8103 

The names, address, and telephone number of the owners of record 
of the land proposed for development. 

The name, address, and telephone number of the developer, if 
different from the owner, and an explanation of the difference. 

The name, address and telephone number of the agent of the 
applicant, if there is an agent. 

The name, address, and telephone number of the all land use, 
environmental, engineering, economic, or other professionals that 
are assisting with the application. 

The name, address and legal description of the land on which the 
preliminary development plan is proposed to occur, with attached 
copies of any instruments referenced, such as but not limited to 
deeds, plats, easements, covenants and restrictions. 

A copy of the relevant Duval County property assessment map, 
showing the exact location of the land proposed for development, 
with the boundaries already marked. 

Page 4 of 12 



Ordinance No. 2018-8103 

7. An eight and one-half (8 1 /2) by eleven ( 11) vicinity map locating 
the proposed land for development. 

8. A statement of the planning objectives to be achieved by the 
planned redevelopment activity and its consistency with the 
Jacksonville Beach Community Redevelopment Plan. The 
statement shall include a detailed description of the character of the 
proposed development, including information relative to the 
architectural style of the proposed development. 

9. A statement of the applicant's intentions with regard to the form of 
ownership contemplated for the development when construction is 
completed, e.g., sale or lease of all or some of the development 
including rental units, condominiums, or fee simple conveyance. 

10. A description of the proposed development, including: 

1. The number and type of residential dwelling units. 

11. The approximate gross density for the residential 
development. 

111. The amounts of land and building square footages for 
nonresidential developments, by type of use, including any 
portions to be reserved for public use. 

1v. Calculations showing the total lot coverage for building and 
accessory uses. 

11. A concept plan showing the location of all proposed buildings, the 
proposed traffic circulation system, and parking facilities. 

12. A tentative development schedule indicating: 

1. 

11. 

111. 

The approximate date when construction of the 
development can be expected to begin. 

The stages in which the development will be built and the 
approximate date when construction on each stage can be 
expected to begin. 

The approximate date when each stage of development will 
be completed. 

Page 5 of 12 



c. Determination of sufficiency. The planning and development director shall 
determine if the application is sufficient within ten (10) working days after 
it is submitted. 

1. If the planning and development director determines the 
application is not sufficient, a written notice shall be mailed to the 
applicant specifying the application's deficiencies. No further 
action shall be taken on the application until the deficiencies are 
remedied. 

2. When the application is determined sufficient, the planning and 
development director shall notify the applicant, in writing, of the 
application's sufficiency and that the application is ready for 
review pursuant to this section. 

d. Review and report. On the day the application is determined sufficient, the 
planning and development director shall forward the application to the 
Jacksonville Beach Redevelopment Agency for its review and 
recommendation. Within twenty-five (25) working days after the receipt 
of the application, the Jacksonville Beach Redevelopment Agency shall 
review the application and prepare a report recommending approval, 
approval with conditions or denial, based on the standards in section 34-
347( c )(3)fi1. The planning and development director shall mail a copy of 
the redevelopment agency report to the applicant on the day the report is 
completed, along with written notification of the time and place the 
application will be considered by the planning commission at a public 
hearing. 

e. Public hearings. The planning commission shall hold one (1) public 
hearing and the city council shall hold two (2) public hearings on a 
preliminary development plan for a RD zoning district classification when 
the amendment would affect five (5) percent or more of the total land area 
of the city. The second public hearing before the city council shall be held 
approximately two (2) weeks after the first public hearing. The day, time, 
and place at which the second city council public hearing will be held 
shall be announced at the first public hearing. The planning commission 
and the city council each shall hold at least one (1) public hearing on a 
proposed preliminary development plan for a RD zoning district when that 
amendment would affect less than five (5) percent of land in the city. The 
public hearings shall be held after 5:00 p.m. on a weekday. 

f. Notice. The planning and development director shall provide notice of the 
public hearings pursuant to the requirements of section 34-154(b ). 

g. Action by planning commission. The planning commission public hearing 
on the application shall be conducted pursuant to the procedures in section 

Ordinance No. 2018-8103 Page 6 of 12 



34-151 et seq. At the public hearing, the planning commission shall 
consider the application, the recommendation of the Jacksonville Beach 
Redevelopment Agency, comments of the applicant and city staff, and 
public testimony. After close of the public hearing, the planning 
commission shall recommend to the city council approval, approval with 
conditions, or denial of the requested rezoning and preliminary 
development plan for the RD zoning district classification. In reviewing 
and making a recommendation, the planning commission shall apply the 
standards in section 34-211 governing rezonings. section 34 347(£l{3)ffi 

h. Action by the city council. 

1. Scheduling of public hearing. Upon notification of the 
recommendation of the planning commission, the application and 
recommendation shall be forwarded to the city council for the 
scheduling of a public hearing at the first available regularly 
scheduled meeting by which time the public notice requirements 
can be satisfied, or such time as it is mutually agreed upon by the 
applicant and planning and development director. 

2. Decision. At the public hearing, the city council shall consider the 
application, the recommendation of the Jacksonville Beach 
Redevelopment Agency, the recommendation of the planning 
commission, and comments of the applicant and city staff. After 
the close of the public hearing, the city council shall approve, 
approve with conditions, or deny the rezoning application and 
preliminary development plan pursuant to the standards in section 
34-211. 347~)(1)(i). 

1. Standards. A preliminary development plan for a RD zoning district 
designation shall comply with the following standards: 

Ordinance No. 2018-8103 

1. Land area. Development shall be approved only on land having an 
area which is deemed to be adequate and appropriate. 

2. Permitted uses. 

1. 

11. 

Uses shall be governed by the provisions of the 
Jacksonville Beach Community Redevelopment Plan and 
shall be appropriate for the location requested, compatible 
with other existing or proposed uses in the general vicinity, 
and consistent with the adopted Jacksonville Beach 
Community Redevelopment Plan. 

The following uses are specifically prohibited: 

Page 7 of12 



3. 

4. 

Ordinance No. 2018~8103 

a) Manufacturing., except for activity related to the 
production of items designed for sale at retail on the 
premises such as arts and crafts, jewelry, or bakery 
goods. 

b) Outdoor storage yards of any kind, including junk 
yards. 

c) Wholesale trade, warehouse, and distribution 
establishments. 

d) Cemeteries. 

e) Mobile home parks. 

f) Motor vehicle repair, services, and garages. 

g) Transportation and transportation service 
establishments, except terminal and service 
facilities for passenger transportation. 

h) Petroleum and petroleum products receiving, 
storage/and distribution. 

i) Veterinary services and kennels. 

j) Recreational vehicle or travel trailer parks. 

k) Commercial and industrial laundries. 

l) Cold storage and ice processing plants. 

m) Contract construction establishments. 

n) Rooming and boarding houses. 

Residential density. The maximum density allowed for residential 
development shall not exceed forty ( 40) dwelling units per gross 
acre, or two (2) dwelling units for the first five thousand (5,000) 
square feet, plus one (1) dwelling unit for each additional one 
thousand (1,000) square feet of land, whichever is the strictest. 

Area and setback requirements. Minimum lot area, minimum 
width, yard setbacks, and maximum lot coverage shall be 
consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the 
Jacksonville Beach Community Redevelopment Plan, comparable 

Page 8 of 12 



Ordinance No. 2018-8103 

to the remainder of the planned redevelopment, and comparable to 
the existing and proposed development of the surrounding area. 
The maximum building height allowed shall be thirty-five (35) 
feet. 

5. Traffic circulation control and parking. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

1. A suitable transportation and traffic control plan shall be 
provided showing the utilization of existing roads for 
access to the proposed development, and their relationship 
to on-site driveways, parking and loading areas, refuse 
collection points, sidewalks, bike paths, and other traffic
related facilities. The suitability of the proposed traffic 
management system shall be determined, in part, by the 
potential impact of the development on safety, traffic flow 
and control, accessibility for emergency vehicles, and 
consistency of the development with the provisions of the 
Jacksonville Beach Community Redevelopment Plan. 

11. Principal vehicular access points shall be designed to 
permit smooth traffic flow and minimize hazards to 
vehicular and pedestrian ways. Minor streets within a 
Preliminary Development Plan shall not be connected to 
streets outside the site in such a way as to encourage their 
use by through traffic. 

Off-street parking and loading. Off-street parking and loading 
shall be provided in a planned and coordinated manner consistent 
with the provisions of the Jacksonville Beach Community 
Redevelopment Plan. 

Open space requirements. All residential developments shall 
provide common open space for amenities or recreational 
purposes. The use of the open space or recreational areas shall be 
appropriate for the scale and character of the proposed residential 
development based on consideration of the size, density, 
anticipated population, topography, and the type of dwelling units. 
The common open space or recreational area shall be suitably 
improved for its intended use and the buildings, structures, and 
improvements permitted in the common areas shall be appropriate 
to the uses which are authorized for such areas. 

Signage. All signs erected shall be consistent with the goals, 
objectives, and policies of the adopted Jacksonville Beach 
Redevelopment Plan and the standards of Article VIII, Division 4 . 

Page 9 of 12 



9. Landscape. Landscaping shall be consistent with the goals, 
objectives, and policies of the Jacksonville Beach Community 
Redevelopment Plan and the standards of Article VIII, Division 3. 

10. Environmental. The stormwater management and flood protection 
standards shall be consistent with the goals, objectives, and 
policies of the Jacksonville Beach Community Redevelopment 
Plan and the standards in Article VIII, Division 5. 

11. Utility easements. Easements necessary for the orderly extension 
and maintenance of public utility systems shall be required where 
they are necessary to adequately service the development. 

12. Adequate public facilities. There shall be adequate potable water, 
sanitary sewer, stormwater management, solid waste, park, roads, 
police, fire and emergency management services facilities to 
service the development. The application shall comply with the 
standards in Article IX, Adequate public facilities standards. 

13. Comprehensive plan consistency. The proposed development shall 
be consistent with the future land use map and the goals, 
objectives, and policies of the comprehensive plan. 

J. Conditions. The Jacksonville Beach Redevelopment Agency and the 
planning commission shall have the authority to recommend, and the city 
council shall have the authority to impose such conditions on a 
preliminary development plan for an RD zoning district designation that 
are necessary to accomplish the purposes of this section, this code, and the 
comprehensive plan. 

k. Effect of development order for preliminary de1, 1CHJJtment pjan for an RD 
zoning district designation. Issuance of a development order for a 
preliminary deYelopment plan for an RD zoning district classification shall 
constitute an amendment to the official zoning map to RD zoning district. 
It shall also be deemed to authorize the applicant to submit to the planning 
and development director an application for development permit for the 
approved preliminary RD development plan pursuant to section 34-251 et 
seq. No development plan shall be accepted for review and consideration 
unless the _preliminary RD zoning district classification and preliminary 

development plan have has been approved and remains valid and in 
effect. 

1. Recordation. The adopted Redevelopment 
District: RD ordinance shall be recorded in the office of the Duval County 
Clerk, and shall be binding upon the property owners subject to the 
development order, their successors and assigns, and shall constitute the 

Ordinance No. 2018-8103 Page 10 of 12 



development regulations for the property. Development of the property 
shall be limited to the uses, density, configuration, and all other elements 
and conditions set forth on the adopted preliminary RD development plan. 
Failure on the part of the applicant to record the preliminary de•;elopment 
plaB Redevelopment District: RD ordinance within a period of one 
hundred eighty (180) days following its &RJ)FO:Yal adoption by the city 
council shall render the plan invalid. 

m. Time limitations. Receipt of a development order for ~ reliminary 
development plan fur an RD zoning district classification shall expire at 
the end of one ( 1) year after the date of its initial approval unless an 
application for a development permit for a development plan has been 
submitted to the planning and development director. Only one (1), one
year extension shall be granted for the preliminary de:velQPment plaA: fur 
an RD zoning district classification by the city council, upon written 
application to the planning and development director. Written application 
requesting the extension shall be submitted to the planning and 
development director no later than thirty (30) working days prior to before 
the date that the development order is to expire. Failure to submit an 
application for a final development plan within the time limits established 
by this section shall render null and void the development order for the 
preliminary development plan .fef-an and RD zoning district classification. 

n. Minor deviation to preliminary development plan for an RD zoning 
district designation. A minor deviation may be made from the preliminary 
development plan upon written approval of the planning and development 
director. Minor deviations which shall be authorized are those that appear 
necessary in light of technical or engineering considerations first 
discovered during actual development that are not reasonably anticipated 
during the initial approval process, and shall be limited to the following: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Ordinance No. 2018-8103 

Alteration of the location of any road or walkway by not more than 
five (5) feet; 

Alteration of the building envelope of up to five (5) percent, 
provided such alteration complies with the requirements of this 
Code. 

Reduction of the total amount of open space by not more than five 
(5) percent, provided that such reduction does not permit the 
required open space to be less than that required by this Code. 

Alterations of the location, type, or quality of required landscaping 
elements, if it complies with this Code. 

Page 11 of 12 



o. Amendments to preliminary development plan. A preliminary development 
plan may be amended only pursuant to the procedures established for its 
original approval as otherwise set forth in this section. 

(4) Development plan. An application for a development plan shall be submitted 
within one ( 1) year of receipt of a development order for a pFeliminary 
developmeftt pla:R foF RD zoning district classification, or the development order 
shall become immediately void. 

SECTION 2. That this ordinance shall take effect upon its adoption by the City Council. 

SECTION 3. That if any section, subsection, clause or provision of this ordinance is held 
invalid, the remainder shall not be affected by such invalidity. 

SECTION 4. All ordinances, resolutions, official determinations or parts thereof 
previously adopted or entered into by the City or any of its officials and that are in conflict with 
this ordinance are repealed to the extent inconsistent herewith. 

AUTHENTICATED TIDS __ DAY OF------' A.D., 2018. 

William C. Latham, Mayor 

Laurie Scott, City Clerk 

Ordinance No. 2018-8103 Page 12 ofl2 



JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6231 

Fax: 904 247.6107 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 

Re: 

Date: 

George D. Forbes, City Manager 

William C. Mann, Planning and Development Directo 

Ordinance No. 2018-8104 amending the text of the Land 
Development Code by adding new definitions, and permitting and 
regulatory language regarding Medical Marijuana Treatment Center 
Dispensing Facilities and Pharmacies. 

January 22, 2018 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2018-8104, amending the text of the Land Development 
Code by adding new definitions, and permitting and regulatory language regarding 
Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities and Pharmacies. 

BACKGROUND: 

In November of 2016, voters approved an amendment to the Florida Constitution 
(Amendment 2) that legalizes the use of medically certified marijuana in the State 
of Florida. It authorizes the cultivation, processing, distribution and sale of related 
products by licensed "Medical Marijuana Treatment Centers". The Florida 
Legislature passed Senate Bill 8-A in 2017 in response to Amendment 2, which 
governs the licensure and application process for the growth, processing, 
transportation, administration, and dispensing of medical marijuana products to 
qualifying patients in the State. 

Senate Bill 8-A provides local jurisdictions with two options regarding dispensing 
facilities. Local jurisdictions can either regulate dispensing facilities no more 
stringently than they regulate pharmacies, or they can choose ban them. City 
Council has directed staff to move forward with changes to the Land Development 
Code that would permit medical marijuana treatment center dispensing facilities 
within the City, in certain zoning districts only. 

Currently the Land Development Code does not define a "pharmacy", nor are 
pharmacies listed separately as a permitted or conditional use. This use is covered 
currently under Retail Establishments as "drugs" or "drug stores". The proposed 
changes to the Land Development Code would include the following: 



1. Add the following definitions to Article IV. Definitions: 
• Medical Marijuana Treatment Center 
• Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facility 

• Pharmacy 

2. Add "Pharmacy" and "Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing 
Facility" as permitted uses in: 
• Commercial, general: C-2 

3. Add "Pharmacy" and "Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing 
Facility" as conditional uses in: 
• Commercial, limited: C-1 

• Central Business District 

4. In C-1 , C-2 and CBD zoning districts, change "drugs" and "drug stores" 
under retail establishments, to "non-prescription drugs" to differentiate this 
from a "Pharmacy" which sells prescription medications, in order to permit 
the continued retail sale of over-the-counter medications by non-pharmacy 
retail establishments. 

The proposed changes to the Land Development Code also include regulations 
for the new uses, under a new Section 34-408. These additions include hours of 
operation limitations (may not operate between 9:00 pm and 7:00 am), and 
proximity requirements (cannot be located within 500 feet from another dispensing 
facility, or public or private school) that are consistent with Florida Statutes, and a 
provision that the changes will not impact any existing pharmacy locations. 

The Planning Commission met to consider the proposed Land Development Code 
Text Amendment on January 8, 2018 and voted unanimously to recommend 
approval of the amendment to the City Council. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2018-8104, amending the text of the Land Development 
code by adding new definitions, and permitting and regulatory language regarding 
Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities and Pharmacies. 



Introduced by: _________ _ 
1st Reading: ____ _____ _ 
2nd Reading: _________ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-8104 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND 
ESTABLISHING A COMPREHENSIVE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATION AND OFFICIAL ZONING MAP FOR THE 
INCORPORATED AREA OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 163.3202, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, BY AMENDING ARTICLE IV. DEFINITIONS TO ADD 
DEFINITIONS FOR "MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER", 
"MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER DISPENSING 
FACILITY" AND "PHARMACY", BY AMENDING ARTICLE VIII, 
SECTION 34-343 TO ADD "MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT 
CENTER DISPENSING FACILITY" AND "PHARMACY" TO THE LIST 
OF PERMITTED USES IN THE COMMERCIAL GENERAL: C-2 ZONING 
DISTRICT, BY AMENDING SECTIONS 34-342 AND 34-345 TO ADD 
"MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER DISPENSING 
FACILITY" AND "PHARMACY" TO THE LIST OF CONDITIONAL 
USES IN COMMERCIAL LIMITED: C-1 AND CENTRAL BUSINESS 
DISTRICT: CBD ZONING DISTRICTS, BY AMENDING ARTICLE VIII 
SUPPLEMENTAL STANDARDS, DIVISION 2, TO CREATE A NEW 
SECTION 34-408 MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER 
DISPENSING FACILITIES AND PHARMACIES FOR THE 
INCORPORATED AREA OF THE CITY, AND PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE: 

WHEREAS, the City of Jacksonville Beach has the authority to adopt this Ordinance pursuant to Article 
VIII of the Constitution of the State of Florida; Chapters 163 & 166, Florida Statutes; and Section 381.986, 
Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the voters of Florida and the City of Jacksonville Beach approved Amendment 2 titled "Use 
of Marijuana for Debilitating Medical Conditions" in November 2016, authorizing the use of medical 
marijuana in the State of Florida; and 

WHEREAS, the Florida legislature passed Senate Bill 8-A in reponse to Amendment 2, which governs the 
licensure and application process for the growth, processing, administering and dispensing of qualifying 
medical marijuana products in the State of Florida; and 

WHEREAS, the State has provided local jurisdictions with the option to allow medical marijuana treatment 
center dispensing facilities within their jurisdictional boundaries regulated no more stringently than 
pharmacies, or to ban them altogether; and 

Ordinance No. 2018-8104 Page 1 of 4 



WHEREAS, the City has conducted public meetings regarding Medical Marijuana Treatment Center 
Dispensing Facilities before the Planning Commission and the City Council where residents and interested 
persons were given an opportunity to be heard; and 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes the desire of its voters to have access to medical marijuana to treat 
debilitating medical conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the Jacksonville Beach Planning Commission, after notice and public hearing, has considered 
the ordinance permitting the operation of Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities and 
has presented its recommendation to the City Council; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. Recitals. The above recitals are ratified and confirmed as being true and correct and 
are made a part of this Ordinance and adopted as legislative findings. 

SECTION 2. Amendment of City Code. That Article IV. Definitions is hereby amended to add 
definitions, in proper alphabetical order, new definitions for Medical Marijuana Treatment Center and 
Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facility, and Pharmacy as follows1: 

Section 34-41. General 

Medical Marijuana Treatment Center means a facility licensed by the Florida Department 
of Health that can cultivate, process, transport, or dispense marijuana or marijuana related 
products. 

Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facility means a facility or business 
operated by a Medical Marijuana Treatment Center (MMTC), or other organization or 
business holding all necessary state licenses and permits and where marijuana and products 
derived therefrom are dispensed at retail in accordance with all other applicable local, state 
and federal laws. 

Pharmacy means a retail store where prescription and other medicines and related products 
are dispensed and sold retail as the principal use, and where the retail sale of other 
miscellaneous goods may also be permitted. 

SECTION 3. That Article VII, Section 34-342 of the City of Jacksonville Beach Code of 
Ordinances or Land Development Code is hereby amended to add the following provisions: 

Section 34-342. Commercial Limited: C-1. 

(b) Permitted uses. 

(6) Retail trade establishments as follows: Building materials, hardware and garden 
supplies; general merchandise; food; apparel and accessories; home furniture, furnishing 
and equipment stores; non-prescription drugs; used merchandise; miscellaneous shopping 

1 (strikethrough text indicates deletions, underline text indicates additions). 

Ordinance No. 2018-8104 Page2 of4 



goods; fuel dealers; florists; tobacco and newsstands; optical goods; and miscellaneous 
retail goods. 

( d) Conditional uses. 

(22) Pharmacy 

(23) Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities 

SECTION 4. That Article VIl, Section 34-343 of the City of Jacksonville Beach Code of 
Ordinances or Land Development Code is hereby amended to add the following provisions: 

Section 34-343 Commercial General: C-2. 

(b) Permitted uses. 

(10) Retail trade establishments as follows: Building materials, hardware and garden 
supplies; general merchandise; food; motor vehicle dealers, new and/or used; auto and 
home supply stores; gasoline service stations; and boat, recreational vehicle and 
motorcycle dealers; apparel and accessories; home furniture, furnishing and equipment 
stores; non-prescription drugs; used merchandise; miscellaneous shopping goods; fuel 
dealers; florists; tobacco and newsstands; optical goods; and miscellaneous retail goods. 

(31) Pharmacy 

(32) Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities 

SECTION 5. That Article VIl Section 34-345 of the City of Jacksonville Beach Code of 
Ordinances or Land Development Code is hereby amended to add the following provisions: 

Section 34-345 Central business district: CBD. 

(b) Permitted uses. 

(4) Retail trade establishments as follows: Building materials, hardware and garden 
supplies; general merchandise stores; apparel and accessory stores; home furniture, 
furnishing and equipment stores; restaurants; non-prescription drug§_ stares; florists ; 
tobacco stands and newsstands; optical goods stores; and miscellaneous retail goods. 

( d) Conditional uses. 

(10) Pharmacy 

(11) Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities 

SECTION 6. That Article VIII, Section 34-408 is hereby added to the City of Jacksonville Beach 
Code of Ordinances or Land Development Code and is hereby amended to add the following new 
provisions: 

Ordinance No. 2018-8104 Page 3 of4 



Section 34-408- Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities and Pharmacies. 

a) Medical Marijuana Treatment Center Dispensing Facilities 

1) Proximity. A medical marijuana treatment center dispensing facility may not be located 
within 500 feet of the real property that comprises another medical marijuana treatment 
center dispensing facility, or a public or private elementary school, middle school, or 
secondary school, pursuant to Florida Statutes 381.986 (1 l)(c). 

2) Hours of Operation. A medical marijuana treatment center dispensing facility may not 
operate between the hours of 9:00 pm and 7:00 am, as set forth in Florida Statute 
381.986 C8XQC4} 

b) Pharmacies 

1) Hours of Operation. A pharmacy may not operate between the hours of 9:00 pm and 
7:00 am. 

2) A pharmacy operating legally before the date of adoption is exempt from complying 
from the above restriction related to hours of operation. 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect upon its adoption by the City Council. 

SECTION 8. That if any section, subsection, clause or provision of this ordinance is held invalid, 
the remainder shall not be affected by such invalidity. 

SECTION 9. All ordinances, resolutions, official determinations or parts thereof previously 
adopted or entered into by the City or any of its officials and that are in conflict with this ordinance are 
repealed to the extent inconsistent herewith. 

AUTHENTICATED THIS __ DAY OF _____ , A.D., 2018. 

William C. Latham, Mayor 

Laurie Scott, City Clerk 

Ordinance No. 2018-8104 Page 4 of 4 


	CC 180219 Agenda scan.pdf
	agenda packet 1
	agenda packet 2
	agenda packet 3




